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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER'S OF NLG INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of NLG Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to
as 'the Company'), which comprise the Statement of Financial Posistion as at Asad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018), and the
Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporing Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statement that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiliity is to express an opinion on these financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and Plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018), and of its financial performance, its cash flows and its changes in equity position
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the audit.
b. The Statement of Financial position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,

statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in this report have been prepared
in all material respect in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. In our opinion, proper books
of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of
those books of accounts. However, additional adjustments made in order to prepare financial statements as
per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards are yet to be incorporated in the books of accounts.

c. To the best of our information and according to the explanations, given to us and from our examination of
the books of accounts of the Company, we have not come across any cases where the Board of Directors or
represesntative or any employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or




> @

misappropirated the assets or caused loss or damage to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of accounts we have not come across any cases where accounting fraud has been committed in the
Company.

The Company has maintained reserve for unexpired risk as per Insurance Act 2049 and Insurance Rules, 2049.
The Insurance Fund, Compulsory Reserve Fund and other funds of similar nature have been maintained as
prescribed by Beema Samiti.

We have not come across any cases where the company is involved in any business other than those licensed
by Beema samiti or has issued any policies other than those approved by Beema samiti.

We have not come across any cases where the company has acted against the interest of insured.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has in general
complied with the Directives issued by Beema Samiti. However, the company has not started the practice of
cancelling insurance policies on which insurance premium is not realized as per Section 55 of the Corporate
Good Governance Directive issued by Beema Samiti. The Company has made a provision of Rs. 14,561,862
towards the policies on which insurance premium amounts are not realized as at Ashad end 2075. Further, as
required under Rule 17 of Insurance Rules, 2049, formal approval of Beema Samiti for operating some of the
branches/offices were not available for our verificaton.

Financial and other relevant information has been provided to the shareholders of the Company.

The Company is capable to bear all its accepted long term liabilities in proportion to the assets held by it.
Internal control system of the Company seems to be effective. However, controls in the area of inter-
departmental reconciliations, confirmations and reconciliations of receivables and payables needs to be

improved.
The statements received from the Branch offices of the Company, though not audited independently, were

adequate for the purpose of the audit.

BM Dhungana, FCA
Partner

For, B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date:2076/03/31
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashadh 32, 2075

Particulars

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Deferred Tax Assets

Financial Investment

Financial Investment measured at Amortized Cost

Financial Investment at FVTOCI
Financial Investment at FVTPL
Deferred Expenses

Other Assets

Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance Receivable
Income tax receivable

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Total assets

Equity and Liabilities

Share Capital

Share premium

Insurance Fund

Catastrophe Reserve

Other Reserve and Retained Earnings
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity
Liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Insurance contract liabilities
Employee benefit obligation
Deferred revenue

Reinsurance payables

Other payables

Income Tax Payable

Other Provisions

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Manoj Shrestha

AGM CEO
Suresh Prasad Khatri Mana B. Rai
Director Director

Date: 2076/03/31
Place: Kathmandu

g arfiw gfeaEq, oy /9y 11 9%

Notes

511
5.1.2
5.2
53
53.1
53.2

5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.2
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16
5.17
5.18
5.19

Chairman

Min B. Samari
Director

2074/75
NPR

18,157,209
1,432,340
29,887,045
1,898,347,537
1,642,179,363
256,168,174
28,514,530
175,156,494
834,227,638
56,501,131
27,826,452
375,851,787
3,445,902,163

640,406,250
147,615
705,118,912
54,366,661
53,308,175
1,453,347,613

1,443,580,387
58,810,000
113,787,915
168,673,927
184,619,690
23,082,631
1,992,554,550
3,445,902,163

Sunil Ballav Pant Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat B. Basnet

Director

Dr. Bharat K. Thapa

Director

2073/74
NPR

13,385,792
1,080,674
12,658,322
1,731,192,341
1,387,721,138
343,471,202
23,049,163
132,542,891
724,227,191
14,421,359
14,547,791
351,401,410
3,018,506,934

512,325,000
147,615
581,337,123
42,180,821
122,927,434
1,258,917,993

1,349,022,413
51,917,632
76,733,582
145,619,525
113,213,159
23,082,631
1,759,588,942
3,018,506,934

Restated
2072/73
NPR

10,667,194
609,176

1,481,870,032
1,158,570,494
323,299,538
20,332,796
91,190,532
802,004,699
11,586,628
484,966,866
2,903,227,924

409,860,000
147,615
466,274,829
30,599,287
187,485,111
1,094,366,842

14,876,395
1,413,221,986
38,392,747
72,425,718
188,720,130
73,939,998
364,678
6,919,431
1,808,861,082
2,903,227,924

As per our report of even date

CA BM Dhungana

Partner

B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year Ended 32nd Ashadh, 2075

. 2074/75 2073/74

Particulars Notes NPR NPR
Gross premiums 6.1.1 | 1,504,855,335 | 1,361,101,038
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 6.1.2 | (813,303,639) | (659,855,601)
Net premiums 691,551,696 701,245,437
Fees and commission income 6.2 188,807,590 162,409,023
Investment income 6.3 192,494,607 106,685,006
Net realised gains and losses 6.4 4,256 479,559
Other operating income 6.5 1,006,379 4,404,317
Total revenue 1,073,864,528 975,223,342
Gross benefits and claims paid 6.6 (a) | (866,379,473) | (791,778,614)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 6.6 (b) 457,164,808 410,019,033
Net benefits and claims (409,214,665) | (381,759,581)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities 6.7 15,442,471 (13,577,935)
Other operating and administrative expenses 6.8 | (239,815,929) | (209,743,506)
Other expenses 6.9| (57,125,622)| (52,564,856)
Provisions 6.10 | (14,103,671)| (21,917,406)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (704,817,416) | (679,563,284)
Profit before tax 369,047,112 | 295,660,058
Income Tax Expenses 6.11 | (121,439,119) | (94,340,129)
Profit for the year 247,607,994 201,319,929
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Earnings per share
Basic EPS 38.66 39.30
Diluted EPS 38.66 39.30
Basic EPS (Restated) - 31.44

Manoj Shrestha Sunil Ballav Pant Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat B. Basnet
AGM CEO Chairman Director

As per our report of even date

Suresh Prasad Khatri Mana B. Rai Min B. Samari Dr. Bharat K. Thapa
Director Director Director Director

Date: 2076/03/31

Place: Kathmandu CA BM Dhungana

Partner
B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year Ended 32nd Ashadh, 2075

Particulars 2074/75 2073/74
NPR NPR

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash Received
Net premium income 691,551,696 701,245,437
Fee and Commission income 188,807,590 162,409,023
Investment Income 192,494,607 106,685,006
Net realized gains and losses 4,256 479,559
Other operating income 1,006,379 4,404,317
Cash Paid
Net Claim Paid (409,214,665) (381,759,581)
Other operating and administrative expenses (239,815,929) (209,743,506)
Other expenses (57,125,622) (52,564,856)
Income tax (121,439,119) (94,340,129)
Adjustment
Deferred Reinsurance commission income 37,054,333 4,307,864
Deferred Expenses (5,465,367) (2,716,367)
Depreciation 4,211,746 3,170,565
Change in insurance contract liabilities 94,557,974 (64,199,573)
(Increase)/Decrease of Current Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Financial Assets (30,267,871) (121,388,617)
(Increase)/Decrease in Reinsurance Asset (110,000,447) 77,777,508
(Increase)/Decrease in Others Assets (42,613,603) (41,352,359)
Increase/(Decrease) of Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 29,946,770 (24,345,728)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 71,406,531 39,273,161
Net cash flow from operating activities(A) 295,099,259 107,341,725
Cash flow from investing activities
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Assets (8,983,163) (5,889,163)
(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets (351,666) (471,498)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of Banks & (254,458,225) (229,150,645)
Financial Institutions
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (263,793,054) (235,511,306)
Cash Flow on Financing Activities
Interest Expense
Dividend Paid (6,855,829) (5,395,875)
Isuue of Share Capital -
Net cash flow from financing activities(C) (6,855,829) (5,395,875)
Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 24,450,377 (133,565,456)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 351,401,410 484,966,866
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (A+B+C+D) 375,851,787 351,401,410

Manoj Shrestha Sunil Ballav Pant Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat B. Basnet
AGM CEO Chairman Director

As per our report of even date

CA BM Dhungana
Partner
B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants

Suresh Prasad Khatri Mana B. Rai Min B. Samari Dr. Bharat K. Thapa
Director Director Director Director

Date: 2076/03/31
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year Ended 32nd Ashadh, 2075

2074/75 2073/74
Particulars Notes
NPR NPR
Profit for the Year 247,607,994 201,319,929
Other comprehensive income (OCl)
Net gain on Financial Assets (71,366,488) (39,576,021)
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) 5,027,549 (5,246,672)
Income tax relating to above items 19,901,682 13,446,808
OClI for the year, net of tax (46,437,257) (31,375,885)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 201,170,736 169,944,044
Manoj Shrestha Sunil Ballav Pant Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat B. Basnet As per our report of even date
AGM CEO Chairman Director
Suresh Prasad Khatri Mana B. Rai Min B. Samari Dr. Bharat K. Thapa AN P Ee)
. . . . Partner
Director Director Director Director

B&B Associates

Date: 2076/03/31 Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

2.1

General Information

NLG Insurance Co. Ltd (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’ or ‘NLG’) was incorporated
on 2005 under Company Act, 2063 with the registration number 919/061/62 and operating
as General Insurance Company after obtaining license from Beema Samiti on 2062/06/23
under Insurance Act 2049. The registered office of the Company is located at Panipokhari,
Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company is listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (the sole stock
exchange in Nepal) for public trading of its shares.

The principal activity of the Company is to issue non-life insurance contracts to individual and
corporate clients. Information of the company’s shareholding structure and major product
classification is provided in Note 4. 50% of the ordinary shares of the company is held by its’
holding company - National Life Insurance Company Limited. Information on other related
party relationships of the company is provided in Note 7.5.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), as prepared by the Accounting Standards Board of
Nepal and issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for investment
properties and financial assets and derivative instruments that have been measured at fair
value.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period. In addition, the company presents an additional statement of financial position at
the beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of
an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial
statements.

The company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An
analysis regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (no
more than 12 months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more than 12
months) is presented in the respective notes.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements were prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) along with the approved carve-outs issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal on September 20, 2018 on NFRS requirement,
which allowed alternative treatments and the Company adopted following carve outs:

NAS 17: Lease

NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement,
- Impairment accounting,

- Calculation of interest income as per effective interest rate

- Calculation of interest income on amortized cost
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Disclosure of carve-outs is provided in para 3.17 for Lease

Historical cost convention was used for financial statement recognition and measurement
except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than historical costs, such
as fair value has been applied, these have been disclosed in accordance with the applicable
reporting framework.

The adoption of NFRS for preparation of financial statements was brought in effect from
fiscal year 2074/75.

2.2 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the
nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

2.3 Reporting period and approval of Financial Statements

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements and in preparing the opening NFRS statement of financial
position as at 16th July, 2016, which is the opening date of the previous financial year for the
purposes of the transition to NFRSs, unless otherwise stated. To comply the NFRS provisions
following dates have been considered, in terms of first-time adoption.

Relevant Financial Statement

Nepalese Calendar

English Calendar

Opening NFRS SOFP Date

1st Shrawan, 2073

16th July,2016

Comparative SOFP Date

31st Ashad, 2074

15th July, 2017

Comparative reporting period

1st Shrawan, 2073-
31st Ashad, 2074

16th July, 2016-
15th July, 2017

First NFRS SOFP Date

32nd Ashad, 2075

16th July, 2018

First NFRS reporting period

1st Shrawan, 2074-
32nd Ashad, 2075

16th July, 2017-
16th July, 2018

The management of the company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements of the Company as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).
The financial statements along with notes to the financial statements have been approved
by the Board of Directors in its’ 279th meeting held on 2076.03.31. The approved financial
statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 13th Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately
suit its circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make
judgements in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or
assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be
determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial
statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the
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2.5

2.6

2.7

assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported
in the financial statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting
the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the
notes wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates, if any.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Company
is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue the business for the foreseeable
future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range
of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease the operations of the
company.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied
by the Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted
to change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation;
or results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about
the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position,
financial performance, or cash flows. The Company uses the same accounting policies in its
opening NFRS statement of financial position and throughout all periods presented in its first
NFRS financial statements. Those accounting policies comply with each NFRS effective at the
end of its first NFRS reporting period.

New Standards in issue by IASB but yet to be adopted by ASB

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations
have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements
are set out below. The Company will adopt these standards when they are adopted by ASB.

NFRS 9- Financial Instruments:

NFRS 9 states a logical principle base to classify financial assets and financial liabilities which
is driven by cash flow characteristics and the business model in which an asset or liability is
held. Further this standard recommends the assessment of impairment based on more timely
recognition of incurred losses as referred in NAS 39 and entities are required to account for
incurred credit losses from the initial recognition of financial instruments. Currently, Incurred
Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is Expected Credit Loss
Model.
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2.8

IFRS 9 became effective on 1 January 2018 and will have an effect on classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial assets. NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of
work on replacement of NAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments.

IFRS-15: Revenue from contract with customers:

The IASB issued a new standard for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue
recognition standard. The standard requires the following five step model framework to be
followed for revenue recognition:

a) Identification of the contracts with the customer
b) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract
c) Determination of the transaction price

d) Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as
identified in step b)

e) Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The new standard would be effective for annual periods starting from 1 January 2018 and
early application is allowed. The management is assessing the potential impact on its financial
statements resulting from application of IFRS 15.

IFRS 17- Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by the IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a mandatory
effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. It supersedes IFRS
4 Insurance Contract. IFRS 17 with corresponding effective date has not been endorsed
by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Nepal yet. The management is still assessing the
potential impact on its financial statements, if IFRS 17 is applied in the future.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS
16 is the new accounting standard for leases and will replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’. The new standard removes the
distinction between operating or finance leases for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases
being treated as finance leases. All leases will be recognised on the statement of financial
position with the optional exceptions for short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12
months and leases of low-value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The main
reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation
of a lessee’s assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and, together with enhanced
disclosures, will provide greater transparency of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital
employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective transition approach.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligations are for more than one vyear,
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2.9

the Company considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is
material. Various internal and external factors have been considered for determining the
discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of company.

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of
the discounting is material.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop,
such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Property, plant and equipment
Basis of Recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Basis of Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost. and subsequently measured at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, with
the exception of land which is not depreciated. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying
amount of the assets when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the most
recently assessed standard of performance of the existing assets will flow to the Company and
the renovation replaces an identifiable part of the asset. Major renovations are depreciated
during the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate the cost of each
asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 25%
Office Equipment 25%
Computer and Equipment 25%
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Intangible Assets

a) System Software 20%
Vehicles 20%
Leasehold Property 25%
Other Assets 15%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate. The depreciation rates are determined separately for each
significant part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment and commence to depreciate
when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Depreciation of an asset
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or the date that
the asset is derecognized.

Carrying value

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The residual values of assets that are not insignificant are reassessed annually.
Depreciation on revaluation of a class of assets is based on the remaining useful life of the
assets at the time of the revaluation.

De - recognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of property and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are included in profit
or loss.

When replacement costs are recognised in the carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant
and Equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is de - recognised. Major
inspection costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization the remaining carrying amount of
the previous cost of inspections is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the constructions of any qualifying asset are capitalized during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major
plant and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in
Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work
in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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3.2

Intangible Assets
Basis of recognition and Measurement

An Intangible Asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement
of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Useful Economic Life and Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Amortisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated
useful life of the intangible assets, from the date thatitis available for use since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss (other operating and
administrative expenses). Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful
life.

De-recognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from it. The gain or loss, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, arising from the de-recognition of such
Intangible Assets is included in the Statement of Income Statement when the item is
derecognised.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU'’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
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asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Taxes

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate
amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and
deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or Other Comprehensive
Income in which case it is recognized in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income. The
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the
current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in
equity or OCl and not in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
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the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither theaccounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about
facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill
(as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.4 Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a Financial Asset or a Financial Liability in its Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits on the date
that they are originated which is the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, are
recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to purchase/ acquire the Financial
Assets. Regular way purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognized on trade date at
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Classification
Financial Assets

The Company classifies the Financial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the Financial Assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Assets.

The Financial Assets are classified under two classes which are detailed as under;
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies a Financial Asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

e  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition,
the Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as Financial
Assets at Fair Value Though Other Comprehensive Income. Such assets are subsequently
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measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

¢ Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction
costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

e Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Measurement
Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at
amortized cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or
liability classified as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction
for impairment or un-collectability. However, the Company has opted to apply carve-out and
measure the financial assets and liabilities at carrying amount.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The
subsequent changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition
Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
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asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
shall be recognized in profit and loss account.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset,
the Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The company has not offset any of its financial assets with financial liabilities as at 16 July
2018. Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount are reported in
the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The
fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted prices foridentical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on
the instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in
some cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different
to its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument (without modification) or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the
difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other
cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is recognized over
the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed,
transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value per share.
G. Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
e  Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

e When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

e  Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation
of the counterpart.

e  Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a
diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or
postponement of scheduled payments.

e  Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant
loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific
impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for
any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances
and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test
is done on annual basis for trade receivables and other financial assets based on the internal
and external indication observed.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from Company, loans and
advances to customers as well as held—to—maturity investments) is impaired, and impairment
losses are recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of
loan.

Deferred Expenses

Deferred expenses are those expense which are deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion to
the risk assumed in each policy in relation to the policy period. These expenses include agent
commission expenses and Reinsurance commission expense of the company.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities
of the amount which are recoverable from the Reinsurers. These assets are created for the
Reinsurer’s share of Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claims as per the reinsurance
treaty entered by the company.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at banks and
on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share Capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Shares
are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Equity is
defined as residual interest in total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities.
Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are passed
by AGM.

Insurance Fund

The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the net profit
every year as per Regulator's Directive on net profit derived as per Special Purpose Financial
Statement.

3.10 Catastrophe Reserve

The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 10% of the distributable
profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive on distributable profit derived as per Special
Purpose Financial Statement.

3.11 Fair Value Reserve

The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value Gain
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.
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3.12 Deferred Tax Reserve

The Company has a policy of creating deferred tax reserve equal to the amount of the
deferred tax assets appearing in its’ financial statement as per regulator’s directive.

3.13 Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision for
unearned premium and the provision for premium deficiency. The outstanding claims
provision is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related survey fees and expenses.
Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims.
Therefore, the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty at the reporting
date. The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial
claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may
include a margin for adverse deviation. The liability is not discounted for the time value of
money. No provision for equalization or catastrophe reserve is recognised. The liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or
receivable that relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision
is recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to
account as premium income over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of
insurance service provided under the contract.

3.14 Employee Benefits

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus
or profit sharing plans, required by the Bonus Act, 2030, if the Company has present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions,
e  paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

e  profit-sharing and bonuses and

. non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:
Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
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further amounts if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting
Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The obligations for contributions payable by the employer to defined contribution plans are
recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related services
are rendered. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’. The
contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their
present value.

Every employee of the Company is entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly
at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary which are identified as contributions to
‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).The Company does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other
than its annual contribution.

Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Accordingly, staff gratuity and leave encashment have been considered as defined
benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

a) Gratuity

In compliance with Labor Act, 2017, provision is made in the account year of service, for
gratuity payable to employees who joined Company on a permanent basis. An actuarial
valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

NIC’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and
prior periods and discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting
the fair value of any plan assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement
of Financial Position. The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on
the future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan
in Company. An economic benefit is available to Company if it is realizable during the life of
the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or
settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses and
any past service cost that had not previously been recognised.

Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual
period to the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period. The discount
rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
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approximating to the terms of Company’s obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during
the year ended 16th July, 2018 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net interest expense. Company
recognizes the total actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating Company’s obligation in
respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early
withdrawal from service and retirement on medical grounds.

b) Unutilized Accumulated Leave

NIC’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year
from the end of the reporting period is treated as other Long-term employee benefits. NIC’s
net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the
terms of Company’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gains
and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in
the period in which they arise.

c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Company has made an offer
of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the
reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

3.15 Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue includes those revenue which are deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion
to the risk assumed in each policy in relation to the policy period. This revenue include
reinsurance commission income earned by the company.

3.16 Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the

gt i gfedaq, 0% /9y 113y



GAGAGI SeZANTA thodall [Ales

provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

In the case of onerous contracts, a provision is recognised in which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received under it. The unavoidable costs reflect the least net cost of exiting the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in
the period in which the change occurs.

3.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those
assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, which are
explained as under:

3.17.1 Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease.
When Company is the lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after
deduction of unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans to & receivables from other
customers’, as appropriate. Interest income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’
over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in
the leases.

When Company is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and included
in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
‘Other liabilities’. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the
fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance
charges payable are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the lease based on
the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

The company does not have any finance lease arrangements in its books for the FY 2074-75.
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3.17.2 Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. Leases that do not transfer substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Company are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When acting as a lessor, Company includes the assets subject to operating leases in ‘Property,
plant and equipment’ and accounts for them accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized
to the extent that residual values are not fully recoverable and the carrying value of the
assets is thereby impaired. When Company is the lessee, leased assets are not recognized on
the Statement of Financial Position.

The lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis;

OR

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary costincreaseslf payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.

The Company has opted to apply Carve-outs and has recognised the rentals payable and
receivable under operating leases to be accounted on accrual basis based on agreement and
are included in ‘Other operating and administrative expenses’.

3.18 Segment Reporting

Under NFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the Company needs to determine and present operating
segments based on different types of insurance contracts issued by the company.

Based on the operating segments identified, the Company has classified and disclosed
segmental information separately. The businesses are segmented into Fire Insurance, Marine
Insurance, Engineering Insurance, Cattle and crop Insurance and Miscellaneous Insurance.
There are no reportable geographical segments, since all business is operating in Nepal.
The allocation and apportionment of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities to specific
segments is done in the following manner, which is applied on a consistent basis.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities that are directly identifiable to the segment are
allocated on actual basis;

Other revenue, expenses (including depreciation and amortization), assets and liabilities that
are not directly identifiable to a segment are apportioned based of weightage as prescribed
by the Beema Samiti.

3.19 Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is also
the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at
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their functional currency spot rate prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the
statement of profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign monetary items
that form part of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until
the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are reclassified to profit or loss. Tax
charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items are also
recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not
subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of a gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively in subsequent periods).

3.20 Revenue Recognition:
3.20.1 Gross Premium:

Gross written premiums comprise the total premiums received/receivable for the whole
period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. Gross
premium is recognized on the date on which the policy is effective. Premiums include any
adjustments arising in the reporting period for premiums receivable in respect of business
written in prior accounting periods. Rebates that form part of the premium rate, such as
no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross written premium; others are recognised as an
expense.

Unearned Premiums Reserve:

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of the premiums written in periods up to the
accounting date that relates to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the reporting date.
Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

3.20.2 Refund premium

Premium refunded during the review period are deducted (set off) from the gross premium
received.

3.20.3 Reinsurance Premium:

Reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect
of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that
relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred
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over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and
over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively,
because this is consistent with how the business is managed.

3.20.4 Provisions for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses:

Individual loss estimates are provided on each claim reported. In addition, provisions are
made for adjustment expenses and changes in reported claims. The estimates are regularly
reviewed and updated, and any resulting adjustments are included in profit or loss of current
period. Claim liabilities are carried on an undiscounted basis.

3.20.5 Reinsurer’s share of unearned premium:

The reinsurer’s share of unearned premium are recognized as an asset using principles
consistent with the company’s method for determining the unearned premium liability.

3.20.6 Reinsurer’s share of provisions for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses:

The company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to
limit potential losses arising from certain exposures. Reinsurance premiums are accounted for
in the same period as the related premiums for the direct insurance business being reinsured.
Reinsurance liabilities, comprised of premiums payable for the purchase of reinsurance
contracts, are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and are recognized as an
expense when due.

Expected reinsurance recoveries on unpaid claims and adjustment expenses are recognized
as assets at the same time and using principles consistent with the company’s methods for
establishing the related liability.

3.20.7 Fees and commission income

Insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration
services, investment management services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees
are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services are performed. If the
fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised over
those future periods.

3.20.8 Investment Income:

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues. Investment
income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

Realized gains and losses

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated
as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are
recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

3.21 Benefits, claims and expenses recognition:

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether
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reported or not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related
to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other
recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

3.22 Finance Costs:

Interest paid is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest
bearing financial liability.

3.23 Earnings per share including diluted earnings

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24 First Time Adoption of NFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 16th July, 2018, are the first the Company
has prepared in accordance with NFRS. For periods up to and including the year ended 15th
July, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with local generally
accepted accounting practice.

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the Financial
Statements for the year ended 16th July 2018, the comparative information presented for
the year ended 15th July 2017and in the preparation of an opening NFRS based Statement
of Financial Position at 16th July 2016 (the date of transition).

4. Company’s Shareholding Structure and Products

a. Shareholding Structure of the Company

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73
Share holder No. of Equity No.of Equity No.of Equity
% % %
Share Share Share
Promoter Group A | Nepali Organized 3,202,031 50 2,561,625 50 2,049,300 50
Institutions
Nepali Citizen - - -
Foreigner - - -
Total 3,202,031 2,561,625 2,049,300
General Public Group B 1,280,813 20 1,024,650 20 819,720 20
General Public Group C 1,921,219 30 1,536,975 30 1,229,580 30
Total 5,123,250| 100 4,098,600 100
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b. Details of Shareholders holding 1% or more of Total Shares of the Company

. 2074/075 2073/074 2072/073
Particulars % Amount % Amount % Amount
NationallLife Insurance Co. Ltd. | 50.00| 320,203,125| 50.00 256,162,500 50.00| 204,930,000
Mr. Siddheshwor Kumar Singh 4.38 28,071,141 4.38 22,456,913| 4.38 17,965,530
Mrs. Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh 1.38 8,811,991 1.38 7,049,593 1.38 5,639,674
Mr. Rana Bahadur Shah 1.38 8,856,375 1.38 7,085,100 1.38 5,668,091
Rastriya Banijya Bank 2.00 12,808,125 2.00 10,246,500 2.00 8,197,200
Mrs. Tejashwi Rajeshwori Rana| 1.34 8,551,558 1.34 6,841,246 1.34 5,472,997
Mr. Deep Chandra Agrawal 1.79 11,454,400 1.81 9,249,300 - -
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 1.16 7,410,800 - - - -

c. Product Classification

General insurance business means insurance business of any class or classes not being long
term insurance business.

NLG has following portfolios under which it operates its’ business:

- Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying
out contracts of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance
business against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other
occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the fire insurance
business.

- Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and
carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in
connection with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of
transit risks.

- Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and
carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

- Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that
provides economic safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project,
installation project, and machines and equipment in project operation.

Product categories: Depending on the project, it can be divided into construction
project all risks insurance and installation project all risks insurance; depending on the
attribute of the object, it can be divided into project all risks insurance, and machinery
breakdown insurance.

- Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock.
It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities,
both by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment
in crops.

- Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as

liability for passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft
accidents.
Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above
categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents,
Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of
business.
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Deferred Tax on Restatement (2072-73)

Deferred Tax recognized in PL
Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment

Agent Commssion Expense - Deferred

RI Premium Expense - Deferred

RI Commission Income - Deferred

Unexpired Risk Reserve

Outstanding Claims

Employee Benefits - Gratuity

Employee Benefits - Leave

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30%

Deferred Tax recognized in OCI
Particulars

Investment Gain

Acturial Losses - Gratuity

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30%
Deferred Tax Already In Books

Total Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2072-73

Deferred Tax on Restatement (2073-74)

Deferred Tax recognized in PL
Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment

Agent Commssion Expense - Deferred

RI Premium Expense - Deferred

RI Commission Income - Deferred

Unexpired Risk Reserve

Outstanding Cliams

Employee Benefits - Gratuity

Employee Benefits - Leave

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities @ 30%

Deferred Tax recognized in OCI
Particulars

Investment Gain

Acturial Losses - Gratuity

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30%
Deferred Tax Already In Books

Total Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2073-74

g atfiw afeaEq, oy /9y 11 ¥¥

Accounting Base
NPR

11,276,370
19,880,728
452,069
72,425,718
336,702,110
274,515,176
29,263,573
6,258,339

Accounting Base
NPR

141,472,210
3,675,049

Accounting Base
NPR

14,466,466
21,974,726
1,074,437
76,733,582
350,622,720
274,172,501
34,408,943
8,728,980

Accounting Base
NPR

101,896,189
10,041,899

Tax base
NPR

12,780,120

315,447,359
262,381,201
30,623,081

Tax base
NPR

3,675,049

Tax base
NPR

15,608,955

360,472,153
187,160,446
31,036,856

Tax base
NPR

10,041,899

5.2

Assets/(Liabilities)
NPR

1,503,750
(19,880,728)
(452,069)
72,425,718
21,254,751
12,133,975
(1,359,508)
6,258,339
91,884,228
27,565,269

Assets/(Liabilities)
NPR

(141,472,210)
(141,472,210)
(42,441,663)
(42,441,663)
(14,876,395)

Assets/(Liabilities)
NPR

1,142,489
(21,974,726)
(1,074,437)
76,733,582
(9,849,433)
87,012,055
3,372,087
8,728,980
144,090,597
43,227,179

Assets/(Liabilities)
NPR

(101,896,189)
(101,896,189)
(30,568,857)
(30,568,857)
12,658,322
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Deferred Tax on Restatement (2074-75)

Deferred Tax recognized in PL
Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment

Agent Commssion Expense - Deferred

RI Premium Expense - Deferred

RI Commission Income - Deferred

Unexpired Risk Reserve

Outstanding Cliams

Employee Benefits - Gratuity

Employee Benefits - Leave

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities @ 30%

Deferred Tax recognized in OCI
Particulars

Investment Gain

Acturial Losses - Gratuity

Acturial Gains and Losses - Leave

Total

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30%
Deferred Tax Already In Books

Total Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2074-75

Financial Investment
Financial Investments measured at Amortized Cost
Particulars

Debentures of Banks and Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits in Commercial Banks

Fixed Deposits in Developments Banks

Fixed Deposits in Finance Companies

Total

Accounting Base
19,589,549
25,224,767

3,289,763
113,787,915
353,662,750
255,690,000

43,346,331
9,728,040

Accounting Base
NPR

30,529,701.62

4,214,310

32/03/2075
NPR

123,838,290
1,228,657,580
253,861,267
35,822,227
1,642,179,363

Tax base
20,837,844

356,348,962
209,372,282
43,346,331
9,728,040

Tax base
NPR

4,214,310

31/03/2074
NPR

111,387,710
1,030,512,659
200,563,347
45,257,422
1,387,721,138

Assets/(Liabilities)
1,248,295
(25,224,767)
(3,289,763)
113,787,915
(2,686,212)
46,317,718

130,153,186
39,045,956

Assets/(Liabilities)
NPR
(30,529,702)

(30,529,702)
(9,158,910)

(9,158,910)

29,887,045

5.3
531
31/03/2073
NPR
111,320,957
899,741,192
102,986,336
44,522,009
1,158,570,494

Interest accrued on fixed deposits are presented under financial investment measured at amortized cost as on the

reporting date.
Financial Investments at FVTOCI
Particulars

Ordinary Share- Public Companies
Nepal Reinsurance
Provision for Losses of Investment

Total

32/03/2075
NPR

178,426,174
77,742,000

256,168,174

31/03/2074
NPR

265,729,202
77,742,000

343,471,202

53.2
31/03/2073
NPR
245,557,538
77,742,000

323,299,538

Financial Investments at FVOCI includes investment in ordinary and promoters shares of different companies. The movement
in fair value of these instruments have been adjusted through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
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Ordinary Share- Public Companies
Corporate Equity shares:
Quoted

Unquoted

Micro-Finance Institutions
Quoted

Unquoted

Hydro Company

Quoted

Unquoted

Total

Deferred Expenses
Particulars

Agent Commission Expenses
Reinsurance Commission Expenses
Total

32/03/2075

166,837,972

16,325

11,571,877

178,426,174

32/03/2075
NPR

25,224,767
3,289,763
28,514,530

31/03/2074
253,608,715

33,325

12,087,162

265,729,202

31/03/2074
NPR

21,974,726
1,074,437
23,049,163

31/03/2073

228,515,084

284,839

16,757,615

245,557,538

5.4
31/03/2073
NPR
19,880,728
452,069
20,332,796

Deferred Expenses include agent commission and reinsurance commission expense deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion
to the risk to be assumed in each policy in relation to policy period.

Other Assets
Particulars

Advance Payment

Advance to Employee
Sundry Debtors

Deposits

Printing and Stationary Stock
Gold Coins

Employee Loan

Other Advances

Provision for Doubtful Debt
Total

32/03/2075
NPR
4,139,737
2,209,399

16,747,278
284,965
703,833.00
455,405.00
38,601,104.00
128,404,253
(16,389,480)
175,156,494

31/03/2074
NPR
1,909,743
1,609,046
3,117,225
203,967
737,151.00
406,465.00
27,415,068.00
99,903,653
(2,759,427)
132,542,891

Other Assets include advance made for various expenses and other non refundable advances.

Reinsurance Assets
Particulars

Reinsurance Assets against Unexpired Risk Reserve
Reinsurance Assets against Outstanding Claims
Total

32/03/2075
NPR

420,354,885
413,872,753
834,227,638

31/03/2074
NPR

332,910,550
391,316,641
724,227,191

5.5
31/03/2073
NPR
1,463,387
1,047,505
1,767,339
195,217
686,209.00
357,695.00
24,326,979.00
62,755,739
(1,409,538)
91,190,532

5.6
31/03/2073
NPR
315,860,377
486,144,322
802,004,699

Reinsurance Assets includes Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claims pertaining to Reinsurers.

Reinsurance Receivable
Particulars

Receivable from Local Insurance Company
Receivable from Foreign Reinsurance Company
Total

32/03/2075
NPR

11,789,653
44,711,478
56,501,131

31/03/2074
NPR

7,377,744
7,043,615
14,421,359

5.7
31/03/2073
NPR
5,839,405
5,747,223
11,586,628

Reinsurance Receivable includes amount receivable from local insurance companies as well as international reinsurers on

account of normal business transaction.
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Income Tax Receivable 5.8
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2073 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR
Advance Tax 146,592,612 122,975,829 -
Provision for tax (118,766,160) (108,428,038) -
Total 27,826,452 14,457,791 -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 5.9
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR
Cash 1,621,135 11,491,062 932,578
Commercial Banks 326,760,004 282,943,157 317,861,222
Development Banks 39,995,002 51,040,012 152,463,311
Financial Institutions 7,475,646 5,927,179 13,709,755
Total 375,851,787 351,401,410 484,966,866

"Cash and cash equivalents include Cash at Vault and Bank deposit balances, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
Bank Balance includes balance in call and current bank accounts.
Fair value of cash and bank balance is the carrying amount."

Share Capital 5.10
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR

Authorised capital

(15,000,000 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

(5,000,000 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 500,000,000
Issued capital

(6,404,063 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 640,406,250

(5,123,250 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 512,325,000

(4,098,600 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 409,860,000
Paid up capital

(6,404,063 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 640,406,250

(5,123,250 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 512,325,000

(4,098,600 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share) 409,860,000

Total 640,406,250 512,325,000 409,860,000

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.
Insurance Fund 5.11
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR

Fire 109,534,626 85,146,234 82,308,413
Marine 14,908,625 10,723,698 7,998,997
Motor 503,555,847 420,684,993 324,441,174
Engineering 22,015,800 20,072,392 12,345,708
Miscellaneous 54,835,071 44,440,955 39,003,659
Cattle and Crop - - -
Aviation 268,943 268,851 176,878
Total 705,118,912 581,337,123 466,274,829

Insurance Fund are provided of 50% of the net profit as per Regulator's Directive on net profit derived as per

Special Purpose Financial Statement.
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Other Reserve and Retained Earnings 5.12
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR

Insurance Reserve 802,797 802,797 802,797
Regulatory Reserve -

Fair Value Reserve 30,529,702 101,896,189 141,472,210
Deferred Tax Reserve 29,887,045 12,658,322 -
Acturial Remeasurement (4,214,310) (10,041,899) (3,675,049)
Retained Earnings (3,697,059) 17,612,024 48,885,152
Total 53,308,175 122,927,434 187,485,111

"Fair Value reserves are unrealized gain on investment made which are measured at fair value.
Deferred Tax Reserve is created at the amount equal to deferred tax assets as per reulator's guideline
Acturial remeasurements are acturial gains/ (losses) on acturial valuation of employee benefits"

Insurance contract Liabilities 5.13
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR
Outstanding Claim Provision 595,935,607 554,064,855 714,301,888
Incurred but not reported 73,627,145 111,424,288 46,357,611
Gross Unexpired risk reserve 774,017,635 683,533,270 652,562,487
Total 1,443,580,387 1,349,022,413 1,413,221,986

Insurance Contract Liabilties includes provision for Unexpired Risk Reserve, Outstanding amount of claim payables
and provision for IBNR as valued by actuary

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) 5.13.1
As per Insurance Board the liabilities of the insurance company shall be higher of the liailities determined by
the actuary as per NFRS 4 or the liabilities as required by Regulatory Authority. Hence the liabilities has been
determined accordingly.

Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
IBNR as per LAT Report (A) 73,627,145 111,424,288 46,357,611
15% provison created on Net Outstanding Claim (B) 27,309,427 24,412,233 34,223,636
Higher of (A) and (B) 73,627,145 111,424,288 46,357,611
Gross Unexpired Risk Reserve 5.13.2

Unexpired Rik Reserve is the liabilities related with the gross premium income that is not related with current Year
and is deferred for next reporting period. It will be measured at higher of Actuary valuation as per LAT report or as
per regulatory requirement

Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per regulatory 345,775,848 350,622,720 310,008,415
requirement (A)
Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per LAT (B) 353,662,750 344,647,271 336,702,110
Higher of (A) and (B) 353,662,750 350,622,720 336,702,110

Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per LAT is Calculated by deducting reinsurance assets pertaining to Unexpired Risk
Reserve of respective year from Gross Unexpired Risk Reserve .

Employee benefit obligation (Long Term) 5.14
Particulars 32/03/2075 31/03/2074 31/03/2073
NPR NPR NPR
Gratuity 47,560,641 44,450,842 32,938,622
Provision for Bonus 40,703,304.00 33,855,262.00 32,723,495.00
Leave Encashment 9,728,040 8,728,980 6,258,339
Less: Investment in Citizen Investment Trust (39,181,985) (35,117,452) (33,527,709)
Total 58,810,000 51,917,632 38,392,747

Employee Benefit Obligation on account of Gratutity and Leave Encashment is valued by an independent actuary.
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Deferred revenue
Particulars

Reinsurance Commission Income

Total

32/03/2075
NPR

113,787,915
113,787,915

31/03/2074

NPR
76,733,582
76,733,582

5.15

31/03/2073

NPR
72,425,718
72,425,718

Deferred revenue include Reinsurance Commission Income deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion to the risk
to be assumed in each policy in relation to policy period.

Reinsurance Payables
Particulars

Due to Local Insurance Company

Due to Foreign Reinsurance Company

Total

32/03/2075
NPR

6,698,564.00

161,975,363.00
168,673,927.00

31/03/2074
NPR
441,733.00

145,177,792.00

145,619,525.00

5.16

31/03/2073

NPR
1,024,144.00

187,695,986.00
188,720,130.00

Reinsurance Payable includes amount payable to local insurance companies as well as international reinsurers on

account of normal business transaction.

Other Payables
Particulars

Payable to Agent

Payable to Employee

Deposit Premium

Unidentified Insurance Premium
Sundry Creditors

TDS Payable Amount

VAT Payable Amount

Insurance Service Charge payable
Dividend Payable

Premium Refundable

Others

Total

Income Tax Payable
Particulars

Provision for tax

Advance Tax
Total

Other Provisions
Particulars

Provision for other losses

32/03/2075
NPR

5,915,235
3,439,761.00
1,602,155
1,209,465
383,527
11,409,489
18,857,318
15,048,553
2,852,850
145,246
123,756,091
184,619,690

32/03/2075
NPR

32/03/2075
NPR
23,082,631
23,082,631

31/03/2074
NPR
3,910,434
1,772,218.00
1,590,782
1,204,557
534,622
10,620,215
16,182,704
13,611,010
2,967,563
31,557
60,787,497
113,213,159

31/03/2074
NPR

31/03/2074
NPR
23,082,631
23,082,631

5.17
31/03/2073
NPR
3,177,657
1,674,130.00
1,303,547
1,184,051
400,607
8,044,745
14,343,776
12,187,944
2,970,545
31,557
28,621,439
73,939,998

5.18

31/03/2073

NPR
98,076,539
(97,711,861)
364,678

5.19

31/03/2073

NPR
6,919,431
6,919,431

Provision for other losses includes provisions for legal cases against the company as well as for the cases in which

company is plaintiff.
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Section 6. Details Information on statement of profit or loss

Net Premiums

Gross Premium
Particulars

Direct Premium
Facultative Inward Premiums
Total Gross Premiums

Premium ceded to Reinsurers
Particulars

Premium ceded to Reinsurers
Total Premium ceded to Reinsurers

Fees and commission Income
Particulars

Reinsurance Commission Income
Profit Commission Income
Total Commission Income

Investment Income
Particulars

Income from Fixed deposit of Commercial Bank

Income from Fixed deposit of Development Bank

Income from Fixed deposit of Financial Institutions
Dividend Income from the Shares of Public Company
Income from Debenture of Bank and Financial Institutions
Income from Loan

Income from Bank Deposit (Expect Fixed Deposit)

Gain on Sale in Investments

Other Income from Investment

Total

Net realised gains and losses
Particulars

Gain on Sale of Assets
Total net realised gains and losses

Other operating income

Particulars

Written Back of Provision for Loss in Investments
Foreign Exchange Gain

Written Back of Provision for Doubtful Debt
Other Written Back

Total Other Operating Income

AE¢ A wfaaed, 09% /9y 11 Yo

2074/75
NPR

1,475,662,989
29,192,346
1,504,855,335

2074/75

NPR
(813,303,639)
(813,303,639)

2074/75
NPR
177,774,566
11,033,024
188,807,590

2074/75
NPR

111,426,976
26,030,661
4,997,740
8,669,147
9,211,872
765,714
4,302,694
24,024,519
3,065,284
192,494,607

2074/75
NPR

4,256
4,256

2074/75
NPR

532,761
473,618

1,006,379

6.1
6.1.1

2073/74
NPR

1,347,155,877
13,945,161
1,361,101,038

6.1.2
2073/74

NPR
(659,855,601)
(659,855,601)

6.2
2073/74
NPR
162,409,023

162,409,023

6.3
2073/74

NPR
61,216,329
11,271,426
3,098,728
5,444,403
8,750,776
701,257
9,037,956
6,953,677
210,454
106,685,006

6.4
2073/74
NPR
479,559
479,559

6.5

2073/74
NPR

404,317
4,000,000
4,404,317
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Net benefits and claims
Particulars

a. Gross benefits and claims paid
Claim Lodged This Year

Claim Lodged in Prior Years

Total gross benefits and claims paid
b. Claims ceded to reinsurer

Net benefits and claims

Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities
Particulars

a. Change in Gross Insurance contract liabilities

Change in Insurance Contract Outstanding Claims Provision
Change in Charged for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) Provision

Total Change in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

b. Change in Reinsurance Assets

Change in Reinsurance Asset created on Outstanding Claim
Provision

Change in Reinsurance Asset created on Unexpired Risk Reserve
(URR)

Total Net Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Net Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

2074/75
NPR

(533,375,857)
(333,003,616)
(866,379,473)

457,164,808
(409,214,665)

2074/75
NPR

(48,151,365)
40,694,337
(90,484,365)
(97,941,393)
25,939,529

87,444,335

113,383,864
15,442,471

6.6

2073/74
NPR

(507,353,187)
(284,425,427)
(791,778,614)

410,019,033
(381,759,581)

6.7

2073/74
NPR

184,272,588
(74,878,080)
(30,970,783)

78,423,725

(109,051,833)

17,050,173

(92,001,660)
(13,577,935)
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Other operating and administrative expenses 6.8
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Employee Expenses (Note 6.8.1) 165,000,539 148,622,768
House Rent 16,841,368 11,102,966
Electricity and Water 1,125,099 1,042,814
Repair and Maintenance
Building - -
Vehicle 121,400 348,598
Office Equipment and Accessories 819,623 488,873
Others 41,684 -
Communication Expenses 2,475,171 1,831,601
Printing and Stationary 5,161,839 4,562,674
Fuel and Conyenance - 7,030
Travelling Expenses (Including Allowance)
Domestic 1,597,537 1,689,012
International 315,144 757,930
Agent Training - 52,558
Insurance Expenses 3,107,028 2,377,846
Security Expenses 162,500 275,835
Legal and Consultancy 8,422,571 5,838,842
Books and Periodicals 153,871 147,356
Advertisement and Publicity 3,385,353 2,358,987
Business Promotion Expenses 6,043,071 6,928,778
Guest and Refreshment Expenses 220,942 309,253
Board Meeting Fee 2,045,000 2,015,000
Board Meeting Expenses 340,567 457,883
Committee Meeting Fees and Expenses
Committee Meeting Fees 760,000 641,000
Committee Meeting Expenses 54,238 41,523
Annual General Meeting Expenses 477,901 339,123
Audit Related Fees
Audit Fees 330,000 300,000
Tax Audit Fees 30,000 30,000
LFAR Fees 30,000 30,000
Other Fees 60,000 10,000
Internal Audit Fees 300,000 300,000
Other Audit Expenses 715,031 1,001,352
Bank Charge 189,617 337,207
Rates and Taxes 1,061,378 545,250
Depreciation Expenses 4,211,746 3,170,565
Stamp Ticket 3,097,771 1,497,565
Share Related Expenses
Share Registration Expenses 974,018 994,930
Share Listing Expenses - 176,849
Other Share Related Expenses - 127,210
Other
Other Expenses 4,212,217 1,210,893
Wages 314,295 191,940
Fuel Expenses 5,258,080 4,393,221
Membership and Renewal Charges 302,980 422,875
Festival Expenses 56,350 49,500
Foreign Exchange Loss - 2,715,899
Total 239,815,929 209,743,506
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Employee Benefit Expenses 6.8.1
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Salary and Allowance 98,696,845 87,878,645
Provident Fund 2,813,356 2,762,710
Training Expenses 1,256,727 1,662,983
Insurance Expenses 8,936,396 9,428,730
Pension and Gratuity Expenses 5,513,194 6,093,735
Leave Encashment 4,848,317 5,705,092
Other Employee Expenses 2,232,400 1,235,611
Statutory Bonus 40,703,304 33,855,262
Total 165,000,539 148,622,768
Other Expenses 6.9
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Agent Commission 43,489,757 39,616,362
Reinsurance Commission Expenses 3,335,631 1,861,859
Beema Samiti Fees Expenses 6,915,519 7,012,454
Other Direct Expenses 3,384,715 4,074,181
Total 57,125,622 52,564,856
Provisions 6.10
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Provision for loss in investment - -
Provision for loss in loan - -
Provision for Doubtful Debt 14,103,671 1,754,206
Provision for Other Losses - 20,163,200
Total 14,103,671 21,917,406
Income Tax Expenses 6.11
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Income Tax 118,766,160 108,428,038
Defferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities 2,672,959 (14,087,909)
Total 121,439,119 94,340,129
Dividend Paid and proposed 6.12
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Paid During the year
Stock Dividend for 72/73 - 102,465,000
Stock Dividend for 73/74 128,081,250 -
Cash Dividend for 72/73 - 5,392,893
Cash Dividend for 73/74 6,741,116 -
Total Dividend Paid in the year 134,822,366 107,857,893
Proposed for approval at AGM
Stock Dividend - 128,081,250
Cash Dividend - 6,741,116
Total Proposed Dividend - 134,822,366
Earning Per Share 6.13
Particulars 2074/75 NPR 2073/74 NPR
Profit attributable to ordinary equity Holders 247,607,994 201,319,929
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 6,404,063 5,123,250
Basic EPS 38.66 39.30
Weighted average number of shares for Restatement 6,404,063
Basic EPS restated 6,741,116 31.44
Total Proposed Dividend - 134,822,366
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7 Disclosures and additional information
7.1 Risk Management

7.1.1 Insurance Risk
"The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid . Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements."

"The Company Principally issues the following type of contracts: Fire Policies, Marine Policies, Motor
Policies, Engineering Polcies, Micro Policies, Miscellaneous Policies and Aviation Policies. Risks under
non life insurance contracts usually cover twelve month duration. The most significant risk arise for non
life insurance contract due to increase in accident rates, climate changes, natural disasters and terrorist
activities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation
of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of
risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors
and geography. Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular
detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims
are established to reduce the risk exposure of the Company.

a) The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by types of contracts.
As at 16 July 2018
. Outstanding Claims Reinsurance of
Particulars NPR IBNR NPR Liabilities NPR Net NPR
Fire 91,321,649 39,791,817 81,812,406 49,301,060
Marine 2,559,382 130,077 2,150,734 538,725
Motor 333,982,766 25,900,836 183,832,991 176,050,611
Engineering 156,235,319 5,912,433 137,664,478 24,483,274
Miscellaneous 9,752,061 482,831 6,953,043 3,281,849
Cattle and Crop 2,084,430 1,409,151 1,459,101 2,034,480
Aviation - - - -
As at 15 July 2017
Particulars Outstanding Claims IBNR Reinsurance of Net
NPR NPR Liabilities NPR NPR
Fire 270,317,988 72,560,628 255,788,163 87,090,453
Marine 2,029,687 248,237 1,599,237 678,687
Motor 233,493,437 24,286,114 92,704,372 165,075,179
Engineering 38,674,296 10,789,480 34,392,534 15,071,242
Miscellaneous 7,419,547 1,276,774 5,311,405 3,384,916
Cattle and Crop 2,129,900 2,263,055 1,520,930 2,872,025
Aviation - - - -
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As at 15 July 2016

Particulars Outstanding IBNR Reinsurance of Net
Claims NPR Liabilities NPR
NPR NPR
Fire 443,404,360 5,144,834 413,579,236 34,969,958
Marine 1,727,000 616,737 1,208,900 1,134,837
Motor 233,222,889 32,531,361 44,635,116 221,119,134
Engineering 25,375,152 2,496,677 22,014,498 5,857,331
Miscellaneous 6,644,537 1,678,117 4,706,572 3,616,082
Cattle and Crop 3,927,950 3,889,885 - 7,817,835
Aviation - - - -
7.1.2 Financial Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer arises from its investment exposures and investment
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain a prudent approach in its investment strategy and
investment exposures to ensure that investment returns are optimised on a risk adjusted basis and to
ensure the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.

i Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a
financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

a) The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single couterparty or any group of
counterparties.
b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is

avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy,
ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Financial Investments | Neither past due | "Past dueless | "Past 91 to Past due and | Carrying amount
at amortized cost nor impaired NPR | 90 Days"NPR | 180 Days"NPR | impairedNPR NPR

Fixed deposits 1,518,341,074 1,518,341,074
Corporate debentures 123,838,290 - - - 123,838,290
Loans to employees 2,209,399 - - - 2,209,399
Receivables from Re- 56,501,131 - - - 56,501,131
insurers

Deposits 284,965 - - - 284,965
Sundry Debtors 16,747,278 - -| (16,389,480) 357,798
Total 1,717,922,136 - -| (16,389,480) 1,701,532,656

ii Liquidity Risk

"The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset."

Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability of a company to meet payment obligations
in a full and timely manner within a defined time horizon. It is a function of its sources of liquidity relative
to its liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal and external, available immediately or within the
defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets and arrangements that allow an insurer to meet its
liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current and expected payment obligations within the defined
time horizon.
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The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a discounted cash flow basis
which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo arises
taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

As at 15 July 2016

Particulars Less than 1 Year | 1 to 3 Years More than Total NPR
NPR NPR 3 years NPR

Assets

Financial Investments at FVTOCI - -| 256,168,174 256,168,174
Financial Investments at amortized cost 1,642,179,363 - -1 1,642,179,363
Reinsurance contract assets 834,227,638 - - 834,227,638
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 55,348,382 - - 55,348,382
Cash and cash equivalents 375,851,787 - - 375,851,787
Total 2,907,607,170 -| 256,168,174 | 3,163,775,344
Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities 1,443,580,387 - -| 1,443,580,387
Other Financial liabilities at amortized cost 168,673,927 - - 168,673,927
Other liabilities 184,619,690 - - 184,619,690
Provisions - 23,082,631 23,082,631
Total 1,796,874,004 - 23,082,631 | 1,819,956,635
Net Asset/(liabilities) 1,110,733,166 -| 233,085,543 | 1,343,818,709

iii Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk),
market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

a) Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign
currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange
risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali
Rupee.

b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

c) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether

those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

Market indices %age change Impact on Other Impact on equity
Comprehensive
Income
NEPSE 5% 6,244,916 6,244,916
NEPSE -5% (8,921,309) (8,921,309)

Note: Due to lack of information on Beta (correlation ) of NEPSE with the securities, it has been considered
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Liability Adequacy Test

"NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries.

A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) was performed by an independent actuary as at 32 Ashad 2075, 31 Ashad
2074 and 31 Ashad 2073 as required by NFRS 4-Insurance Contracts in order to assess the adequacy

of the carrying amount of the provision for unexpired risk. The valuation is based on internationally
accepted actuarial methods.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over
unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance
technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is
inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for
liability adequacy.

Following are the assumption used by actuaries for the calculation of liabilities of the company as required
by NFRS 4.

"The accounting Policy for Liability testing including the frequency and nature of testing."

"NFRS 4 Accounting Policy document is a policy framework which specifies the fundamental approach
of the company to implementation of the NFRS 4 in the background of regulatory specifications (of Bima
Samiti) for estimation of various liability provisions.

The FY 2017-18 being the first year of application of NFRS 4, it is expected that this Accounting Policy
document shall undergo changes so as to capture directions of the Bima Samiti including experience of
the Company as the business develops.

The cash-flows considered.

Cash Flows considered and estimation are as follows:

Income side:

Premium

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance commission

Outflow side:

Claims

Reinsurance premium

Commission for intermediation

Expenses

The current liability estimates are not based on present value of future cash flows, the portfolio size being
very small. Alternatives methods have been applied"

Valuation methods and assumptions
"For all one-year policies, except for Marine Cargo Open Cover Policies, the UPR is determined on 1/365th
basis, assuming the risk is uniform over the policy year.

For shorter than one-year Marine Cargo Policies, UPR is determined:
i Using straight-line method over the policy term; or

ii. Inthe absence of date required for (i) above, using the last three months’ premium for the relevant
period of Implementing Regulations.

The discounting policy.

No discounting has been used. The estimates of liability amount for non-life insurance contracts are always
carried out on non-discount basis for 1) liability terms being short and 11) the Pricing (determination of
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premium) is on non-discount basis.
7.2.5 Aggregation practises.
"Principles of aggregation:

“when applying an existing accounting policy, the aggregation practice follows that practice already
established in that policy. When using an NAS 37 measure of the future cash flows, the test “shall be made
at the level of a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and managed together as a
single portfolio.”

The portfolio of insurance contracts as at the reporting date is very small, hence no aggregation has been
considered.

7.3 Capital Management

"The focus of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support the business and
business growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital requirements at all times.

In view of this the Company has established the following objectives, policies and approach;
a) To maintain the required solvency level and to pay out its' liabilities on time

b) To allocate capital efficiently and support the growth of the business by ensuring that returns on
capital employed meets the requirements of business

c) To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of
the insured, regulators and stakeholders.

7.3.1 Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid
up capital is NPR 640.41 Million and company is planning to issue right shares to meet the minimum
capital requirements

7.3.2 Solvency Margin

The Company has Solvency Margin Ratio of 1.47 (Previous Year 4.37) computed in accordance with
Solvency Margin Directive, 2071.
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7.4 Employee Benefit
"Gratuity Sick and Paid "Gratuity Sick and Paid "Gratuity Sick and Paid
Particulars Liability" Leave Liability" Leave Liability" Leave
NPR NPR NPR NPR NPR NPR
Expenses Recognized In Statement of Profit or loss (SoPL)
Current service cost 3,458,592 1,100,781 3,630,458 849,796 1,970,085 739,280
Net Interest cost 746,671 698,319 (47,127) 500,667 (506,036) 422,243
Past Service Cost 1,122,689 - - -
Total Acturial (Gain)/Loss recognized in OCI (800,040) 1,120,178 (181,222)
Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c 5,327,952 999,060 3,583,331 2,470,641 1,464,049 1,161,523
Expenses Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses recognized for the (5,027,549) - 5,246,672 - 3,856,271 -
period
Asset limit effect - - - -
Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest (1,255,137) - 1,092,474 - 1,097,724 -
Unrecognised Actuarial (Gains)/Losses from - - - -
previous period
Total Actuarual (Gains)/Losses recognized (6,282,686) - 6,339,146 - 4,953,995 -
in OCI
Change in Present Value Obligations
PVO at beginning of period 44,450,842 8,728,980 32,938,622 6,258,339 | 25,103,950 5,278,038
Interest Cost 3,556,067 698,319 2,635,090 500,667 2,008,316 422,243
Current Service Cost 3,458,592 1,100,781 3,630,458 849,796 1,970,085 739,280
Past Service Cost 1,122,689 - - -
Benefits Paid - - -
Contributions by Plan Participants - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (5,027,549) (800,040) 5,246,672 1,120,178 3,856,271 (181,222)
Liability at the end of the year 47,560,641 9,728,040 44,450,842 8,728,980 | 32,938,622 6,258,339
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
FV of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year 35,117,452 - 33,527,709 - 30,747,709 -
Interest Income 2,809,396 - 2,682,217 - 2,514,352 -
Expected Return on Plan Assets 1,255,137 - (1,092,474) - (1,097,724) -
Contribution by Employer - - - 1,363,372 -
Benefit paid - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets - - -
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year 39,181,985 - 35,117,452 - 33,527,709 -
36,612,115
Amount Recognized in SOFP 1,494,663
Present Value of Obligations at Year End 47,560,641 9,728,040 44,450,842 8,728,980 | 32,938,622 6,258,339
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End 39,181,985 - 35,117,452 - 33,527,709 -
Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in the (8,378,656) (9,728,040) (9,333,390) (8,728,980) 589,087 (6,258,339)
Balance Sheet
Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality NALMT 2009 NALMT 2009 NALMT 2009 [ NALMT 2009 | NALMT 2009 | NALMT 2009
Interest/Discount Rate 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%
Rate of increase in compensation 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6%
Annual increase in healthcare costs
Expected average remaining service 11.12 11.17 11.02 11.02 11.18 11.19
Employee Attrition Rate PS: 0to 40:4% | PS: 0to 40:4% | PS:0to 40:4% | PS: 0to 40:4% | PS: 0 to 40:4% | PS: 0 to 40:4%
Sensitivity Analysis As at 16 July 2018 As at 15 July 2017 As at 15 July 2016
Particulars "Gratuity | Accumulating | "Gratuity | Accumulating | "Gratuity | Accumulating
Liability" | Paid Absences| Liability" | Paid Absences | Liability" | Paid Absences
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Discount Rate 6,463,451
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Discount Rate 7,602,975
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Salary Escalation Rate 7,593,128
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Salary Escalation Rate 6,463,525
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumption constant. In practice, this unlikely to
occur and changes in some of the assumption is correlated. When calculating sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with projected unit credit method at the end of reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the the statement of financial positions.
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7.5 Related Parties Disclosure

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Name Relationship Remarks

National Life Insurance Company Ltd. Holding Company

Bimal Prasad Wagle Chairman

Bharat Bahadur Basnet, Director Key Management Personnel

Suresh prasad Khatri, Director Key Management Personnel

Mana Bahadur Rai, Director Key Management Personnel

Min Bahadur Samari Key Management Personnel

Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa Key Management Personnel

Sunil Ballav Pant, CEO Key Management Personnel

7.5.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 2,045,000 during the fiscal year. There were
35 Board Meetings conducted during the fiscal year. Audit Committee and other committees were paid
meeting allowace of NPR 760,000 during the year.

7.5.2 Transactions with Related Parties

a) Compensation to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

S. No. Particular Short Term | Post Employee Benefits | Other Long- | Termination | Share Based

Employee term Benefits | Benefits Payment
Benefits
Gratuity Leave
Encashment
1 Sunil Ballav Pant | 3,607,157 - - -
Total 3,607,157 - - - - -

b) Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has procured group life insurance policy for it's staff from the holding company

gt arffw gfedeq, oy /9y Il %o
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7.6 Details of Investment in Listed Shares and Mutual Fund Units (Measured at FVTOCI)

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
NPR NPR NPR NPR NPR NPR
Investment in hydro company
Arun Valley Hydro Power Development Limited 3,953,353 2,341,512 3,953,353 3,839,988 3,953,353 5,211,388
Chilime Hydro Power Company Limited 11,781,480 9,224,830| 11,781,480 8,102,094 11,781,480 11,436,480
Riddhi Hydro Power Development Limited 3,228 5,535 13,000 30,163 13,000 51,847
United Modi Hydropower Limited - - 33,700 114,917 - -
Nyadi Hydro Power Company Limited - - - - 57,900 57,900
15,738,061 11,571,877| 15,781,532 12,087,162 15,805,733 16,757,615
Investment in microfinance
Rural Micro Finance Development Center Limited - 16,325 - 33,325 33,840 260,944
ILFCO Laghhu Bittiya Sanstha Limited - - - - 1,500 23,895
- 16,325 - 33,325 35,340 284,839
Investment in Mutual Fund Units
Siddhartha Mutual Fund Scheme 17,548,750| 14,214,488 - - 4,270,000 9,100,000
Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme - - 5,897,740 6,994,720 5,897,740 7,667,062
Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme - - 4,270,000 8,102,500 - -
Nabil Mutual Fund 3,885,210| 3,982,340 - - 3,493,840 6,594,219
Nabil Equity Fund - -| 5,632,510 5,632,510 - -
Nabil Balance Fund - - 3,493,840 5,918,274 - -
Laxmi Value Fund 5,632,510 5,553,655| 17,548,750 21,497,219 6,432,210 8,349,009
Laxmi Equity Mutual Fund 7,887,010 7,642,513 6,432,210 6,432,210 - -
NMB Sulav Investment Fund 9,677,470 9,251,661 5,219,990 6,524,988 5,219,990 7,360,186
NMB Hybrid Investment Fund - - 7,887,010 7,839,688 - -
NIC Asia Growth Fund 20,000,000| 18,380,000 - - - -
64,630,950\ 59,024,657 56,382,050 68,942,109 25,313,780 39,070,475
Investment in Ordinary Promoter Shares
Bank of Kathmandu Limited 727,318 2,318,220 727,319 2,230,305 1,625,000 5,398,869
Citized Bank International Limited 39,536,232| 77,136,900| 39,536,233 89,327,771 1,010,000 2,409,960
NIC Asia Bank Limited 1,880,800] 4,117,400] 1,880,800 4,901,750/ 30,669,934 98,922,949
Nabil Bank Limited 4221640 6,037,356] 4,221,640 6,486,200 4,221,640 7,140,000
46,365,990\ 89,609,876| 46,365,992| 102,946,026 37,526,574 113,871,778
Investment in other ordinary shares
Bank of Kathmandu Limited
33,065 131,208 282,681 1,733,424 - -
Butwal Power Company Limited 9,911,000 5,378,890 9,911,000 7,297,400 - -
Civil Bank Limited - 301,410] 1,570,796 4,134,522 2,038,100 4,585,725
Century Commercial Bank Limited 6,871 197,730 1,199,000 4,398,140 194,900 940,901
Everest Bank Limited - 170,391 2,108,183 3,167,373 2,108,183 4,661,145
Investment and Finance Company Limited - 361,325 564,721 1,910,021 564,721 1,151,610
Innovative Bikas Bank Limited - - - - 938,400 4,334,242
International Development Bank Limited - - - - 883,200 1,810,560
Janata Bank Limited - -| 1,303,100 4,063,472 855,200 4,031,100
Global IME Bank Limited 121,117 451,530 1,347,064 6,107,508 829,550 4,215,275
Global IME Laghu Bittiya Sanstha Limited 191 2,496 - - - -
Hydro Investment Development Company Limited - - 2,896,400 5,705,908 - -
Kumari Bank Limited 52,100 103,679 220,500 851,835 - -
Manjushree Bittiya Sanstha Limited 57,225 168,831 1,133,334 2,058,113 500,000 2,160,000
Mega Bank Limited - 241,240 503,300 3,172,108 380,900 2,410,290
NMB Bank Limited - - 138,729 686,700 138,729 772,240
Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank Limited - 166,250 260,439 800,853 - -
NIC Asia Bank Limited 10,596,000 8,298,476/ 10,596,000 9,060,645 365,400 2,427,516
Nepal SBI Bank Limited - 826,344 3,858,167 9,928,950 7,178,172 14,623,125
Reliable Development Bank Limited - - 91 1,900 517,514 2,450,891
Reliable Laghu Bittiya Sanstha Limited - - - - 1,000 5,850
Kakrebihar Development Bank Limited - - - - 220,500 1,058,736
Om Development Bank 378,699 985,860 1,106,400 5,733,964 - -
Nepal Telecom Limited - - 3,877,232 3,985,875 3877232 4,068,545
Dev Bikas Bank Limited 5,203 7,869 - - 0 -
Manaslu Development Bank Limited - - - - 686400 4,534,920
Matribhumi Development Bank Limited - - - - 96400 257,388
Sajha Development Bank Limited - - 35,400 77,526 35400 113,280
Sana Kisan Development Bank Limited - 406,000 76,900 2,099,796 76900 2,219,112
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited - - 2,102,700 3,740,850 0 -
Sunrise Bank Limited - 3,910 2,700 45,936 20700 198,968
Tourism Development Bank Limited - - 208,600 957,761 0 -
JalBidhut Investment and Development Company - - - - 2,896,400 12,541,412
Limited
21,161,471| 18,203,439| 45,303,439 81,720,580 25,403,901 75,572,831
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7.8 Contingent liabilities and commitments ( to the extent not provided for)
i) The Company does not have any capital commitment or investment commitments
i) The Company doesn’t have any claimed lodged against it except for the claims related with insurance
policies
iii) The Company hasn’t provided guarantees of any type to other parties

7.8.1 The company has disclosed NPR 2.92 million as contingent liability against the cases lodged by claimants
in Insurance Board and Appeallate Court for disagreement of claim assessed by the company. The
company has also provided for the whole amount in its' book of accounts

8 First Time Adoption reconciliations and disclosures

NFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of Nepal Financials Reporting Standards) provides a suitable starting point for
accounting in accordance with NFRS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters.
The Company has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan,
2073 (16 July 2016) (the transition date) by:

A. recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,

@

derecognizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS,
C. reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to NFRS as
required under NFRS, and

D. applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.
Exceptions

As per NFRS 1 any change in accounting policy should be applied retrospectively, however it prohibits
retrospective application of some aspects of other NFRS. Some of the exceptions which are relevant to
the entity are as follows

Estimates: An entity’s estimates in accordance with NFRSs at the date of transition to NFRSs shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP. The company
does not have any such estimates made under NFRS which is different than the local GAAP on date of
transitions.

Classification and measurement of financial assets: An entity shall assess whether a financial asset
carried at amortised cost meets the conditions of NFRS 9 on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that exist at the date of transition to NFRSs. Accordingly, for investment carried at amortised cost as on
date of transition the business model test and cash flow test has been checked for the same date. As per
the exception for retrospective application classification based on the circumstance prevailing at initial
recognition would be difficult and perhaps impossible.

Exemptions

NFRS 1 has provided various optional exemption from some requirement of other NFRS. Retrospective
application of some of the standard can require significant resources and could in some circumstances
be impracticable.

Insurance Contract: First-time adopter may apply the transitional provisions in NFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts. NFRS 4 restricts changes in accounting policies for insurance contracts, including changes
made by a first-time adopter.

Deemed Cost: The entity has not used fair value on date of transition as deemed cost. Rather, the
carrying amount under previous GAAP of an item of property, plant and equipment has been considered
as deemed cost on date of transition. (IG7). There is no requirement for componentization nor there was
any major replacement which was not capitalized in previous year.

8.1 Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past
Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal
Accounting Standards and directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal) and the adoption of NFRS has
been disclosed in the respective segments, including the impact. The detailed impact disclosure is given
below.
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Summary of NFRS Adjustments

8.2 Reconciliation of total equity as at 16 July 2016, 15 July 2017 and 16 July 2018

As at As at As at
16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016
NPR NPR NPR
Total equity (shareholders’ funds) under previous GAAP | 1,519,804,502 | 1,274,164,313 | 1,050,027,795
NFRS Adjustments:
Unexpired Risk Reserve 2,686,212 9,849,433 (21,254,751)
Deferral of Reinsurance Commission Income (113,787,915) (76,733,582) (72,425,718)
Deferral of Agent Commision 25,224,767 21,974,726 19,880,728
Deferral of Reinsurance Commission Expense 3,289,763 1,074,437 452,069
Unrealized Gain/ (Loss) on investment 30,529,702 101,896,189 141,472,210
Deferred Tax Adjustments 25,513,181 8,543,383 (18,118,373)
(Additional)/ Writeback of Employee Benefit Provision (10,296,419) (9,568,991) 728,963
Reversal/ (Payment of Cash Dividend) - 6,741,116 5,392,893
Reversal of Provison on Investment 16,701,548 7,989,027 345,000
Additional IBNR provision (46,317,728) (87,012,059) (12,133,975)
Total adjustment to equity (66,456,889) (15,246,320) 44,339,047
Total Equity under NFRS 1,453,347,613 | 1,258,917,993 | 1,094,366,842
8.3 Reconciliation of profit
Year ended Year ended
16 July 2018 15 July 2017
NPR NPR
Profit as per previous GAAP 247,822,502 230,997,548
Adjustments under NFRS
Unexpired Risk Reserve (7,163,221) 31,104,184
Deferral of Reinsurance Commission Income (37,054,333) (4,307,864)
Deferral of Agent Commision 3,250,041 2,093,998
Deferral of Reinsurance Commission Expense 2,215,326 622,368
Deferred Tax Adjustments (2,931,884) 13,214,948
(Additional)/ Writeback of Employee Benefit Provision (5,754,977) (5,051,282)
Reversal of Provison on Investment 8,712,521 7,644,027
Additional IBNR provision 40,694,331 (74,878,084)
Prior Year Expenses (2,182,313) (119,914)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss (214,509) (29,677,619)
Profit or loss under NFRS 247,607,993 201,319,929
Other Comprehensive Income (46,437,257) (31,375,885)
Total Comprehensive Income under NFRS 201,170,736 169,944,044
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8.4 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions
8.4.1  Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions reported as at 16 July 2018 due to adoption of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Explanatory | Re-classified | Adjustments NFRS NPR
Particulars Notes GAAP NPR
NPR

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 18,157,209 - 18,157,209
Intangible Assets 1,432,340 - 1,432,340
Deferred Tax Assets 4,373,864 25,513,181 29,887,045
Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost b 1,737,258,986 (95,079,623)| 1,642,179,363
Financial Investments at FVTOCI C 225,638,472 30,529,702 256,168,174
Financial Investments at FVPL - - -
Deferred Expenses d - 28,514,530 28,514,530
Other Assets 249,417,322 (74,260,828) 175,156,494
Reinsurance Assets e 834,227,638 834,227,638
Reinsurance Receivables 56,501,131 - 56,501,131
Income tax receivable 146,592,612| (118,766,160) 27,826,452
Cash and Cash Equivalent f 262,082,813 113,768,974 375,851,787
Total Assets 2,701,454,749 744,447,414| 3,445,902,163
EQUITY

Share capital 640,406,250 - 640,406,250
Share premium 147,615 - 147,615
Insurance Fund 705,118,912 - 705,118,912
Catastrophe Reserve 54,366,661 - 54,366,661
Other Reserves 119,765,064 (66,456,889) 53,308,175
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 1,519,804,502 (66,456,889)| 1,453,347,613
Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability -

Insurance contract liabilities g 565,721,244 877,859,143| 1,443,580,387
Employee benefit obligation h 87,695,566 (28,885,566) 58,810,000

Deferred revenue

113,787,915

113,787,915

Reinsurance payables

168,673,927

168,673,927

Other payables 184,619,690 - 184,619,690
Other Provisions i 174,939,819| (151,857,188) 23,082,631
Total liabilities 1,181,650,246 810,904,304| 1,992,554,550
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 2,701,454,749 744,447,415| 3,445,902,163
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8.4 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions
8.4.2  Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions reported as at 15 July 2017 due to adoption of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Explanatory | Re-classified | Adjustments NPR NFRS NPR
Particulars Notes GAAP
NPR

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 13,385,792 - 13,385,792
Intangible Assets 1,080,674 - 1,080,674
Deferred Tax Assets a 4,114,939 8,543,383 12,658,322
Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 1,516,035,206 (128,314,068)| 1,387,721,138
Financial Investments at FVTOCI c 241,575,013 101,896,189 343,471,202
Financial Investments at FVPL - - -
Deferred Expenses d - 23,049,163 23,049,163
Other Assets 185,150,908 (52,608,017) 132,542,891
Reinsurance Assets e - 724,227,191 724,227,191
Reinsurance Receivables 14,421,359 - 14,421,359
Income tax receivable 122,975,829 (108,428,038) 14,547,791
Cash and Cash Equivalent f 208,356,207 143,045,203 351,401,410
Total Assets 2,307,095,927 711,411,007 | 3,021,519,504
EQUITY

Share capital 512,325,000 - 512,325,000
Share premium 147,615 - 147,615
Insurance Fund 581,337,123 - 581,337,123
Catastrophe Reserve 42,180,821 - 42,180,821
Other Reserves 138,173,754 (15,246,320) 122,927,434
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 1,274,164,313 (15,246,320)| 1,258,917,993
Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability

Insurance contract liabilities g 547,632,599 801,389,814 | 1,349,022,413
Employee benefit obligation h 77,466,091 (25,548,459) 51,917,632
Deferred revenue i 76,733,582 76,733,582
Reinsurance payables 145,619,525 - 145,619,525
Other payables 113,213,159 - 113,213,161
Other Provisions j 149,000,239 (125,917,608) 23,082,631
Total liabilities 1,032,931,613 726,657,329| 1,759,588,942
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 2,307,095,927 711,411,008| 3,018,506,934
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8.4 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions
8.4.3  Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions reported as at 15 July 2016 due to adoption of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Explanatory | Re-classified | Adjustments NFRS NPR
Particulars Notes GAAP NPR
NPR

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 10,667,194 - 10,667,194
Intangible Assets 609,176 - 609,176
Deferred Tax Assets 3,241,978 (3,241,978) -
Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost b 1,439,717,127| (281,146,633)| 1,158,570,494
Financial Investments at FVTOCI C 181,827,328 141,472,210 323,299,538
Financial Investments at FVPL - -
Deferred Expenses d 20,332,796 20,332,796
Other Assets 135,458,273 (44,267,741) 91,190,532
Reinsurance Assets e 802,004,699 802,004,699
Reinsurance Receivables 11,586,628 - 11,586,628
Income tax receivable 97,711,861 (97,711,861) -
Cash and Cash Equivalent f 194,489,738 290,477,128 484,966,866
Total Assets 2,075,309,303 827,918,621| 2,903,227,924
EQUITY

Share capital 409,860,000 - 409,860,000
Share premium 147,615 - 147,615
Insurance Fund 466,274,829 - 466,274,829
Catastrophe Reserve 30,599,287 - 30,599,287
Other Reserves 143,146,064 44,339,047 187,485,111
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 1,050,027,795 44,339,047 | 1,094,366,842
Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability - 14,876,395 14,876,395
Insurance contract liabilities g 577,828,560 835,393,426 1,413,221,986
Employee benefit obligation h 72,649,419 (34,256,672) 38,392,747
Deferred revenue i 72,425,718 72,425,718
Reinsurance payables 188,720,130 - 188,720,130
Other payables 73,939,998 - 73,939,998
Income Tax Payable 364,678 364,678
Other Provisions h 112,143,401| (105,223,970) 6,919,431
Total liabilities 1,025,281,508 783,579,574| 1,808,861,082
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 2,075,309,303 827,918,621 2,903,227,924
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8.5.1  Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 16 July 2018 due to adoption of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Particulars Explanatory GAAP NPR Adjustments NFRS NPR
Notes NPR
Gross Premium 1,504,855,335 -| 1,504,855,335
Premium ceded to reinsurers (813,303,639) -| (813,303,639)
Net Premium 691,551,696 - 691,551,696
Fees and commission income i 225,861,926 (37,054,336) 188,807,590
Investment income 193,027,368 (532,761) 192,494,607
Net realised gains and losses 4,256 - 4,256
Other operating income 8,462,645 (7,456,266) 1,006,379
Total revenue 1,118,907,891 (45,043,363)| 1,073,864,528
Gross benefits and claims paid (866,379,473) -| (866,379,473)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 457,164,808 - 457,164,808
Net benefits and claims (409,214,665) -| (409,214,665)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities g (18,088,645) 33,531,116 15,442,471
Other operating and administrative (231,878,639) (7,937,290)| (239,815,929)
expenses
Other expenses d (62,590,988) 5,465,366 (57,125,622)
Provisions (30,805,219) 16,701,548 (14,103,671)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (752,578,156) 47,760,740| (704,817,416)
Profit before tax 366,329,735 369,047,112
Income Tax Expenses a (118,507,235) (2,931,884)| (121,439,119)
Profit for the year 247,822,500 (214,506) 247,607,994
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on revaluation of Financial Assets
at fair value (71,366,488) (71,366,488)
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit
Plan 5,027,549 5,027,549
Income tax relating to above items 19,901,682 19,901,682
Total comprehensive income for the year 247,822,500 (46,651,764) 201,170,736
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8.5.2  Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 15 July 2017 due to adoption of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Particulars Explanatory GAAP NPR Adjustments NFRS NPR
Notes NPR
Gross Premium 1,361,101,038 -| 1,361,101,038
Premium ceded to reinsurers (659,855,601) -| (659,855,601)
Net Premium 701,245,437 - 701,245,437
Fees and commission income i 166,716,891 (4,307,868) 162,409,023
Investment income 106,685,006 - 106,685,006
Net realised gains and losses 479,559 - 479,559
Other operating income 4,749,317 (345,000) 4,404,317
Total revenue 979,876,210 (4,652,868) 975,223,342
Gross benefits and claims paid (791,778,614) -l (791,778,614)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 410,019,033 - 410,019,033
Net benefits and claims (381,759,581) -| (381,759,581)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities g 30,195,961 (43,773,896) (13,577,935)
Other operating and administrative (204,572,310) (5,171,196)| (209,743,506)
expenses
Other expenses d (55,281,222) 2,716,366 (52,564,856)
Provisions (29,906,433) 7,989,027 (21,917,406)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (641,323,585) (38,239,699)| (679,563,284)
Profit before tax 338,552,625 295,660,058
Income Tax Expenses a (107,555,077) 13,214,948 (94,340,129)
Profit for the year 230,997,548 (29,677,619) 201,319,929
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on revaluation of Financial Assets
at fair value (39,576,021) (39,576,021)
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit
Plan (5,246,672) (5,246,672)
Income tax relating to above items 13,446,808 13,446,808
Total comprehensive income for the year 230,997,548 (61,053,504) 169,944,044
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8.6 Reconciliation of Statement Cash Flow for the year ended 16 July 2018 and 15 July 2017 due to adoption of

NFRS

For the Year Ended 16 July 2018

Particulars Previous GAAP NPR | Effect of transition | Amount as per
to NFRS NPR NFRS NPR

Net Cash Flows from operating activities 93,523,682 201,575,575 295,099,257
Net Cash Flows from investing activities (32,941,249) (230,851,805) (263,793,054)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities (6,855,829) - (6,855,829)
Net increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash 53,726,604 (29,276,230) 24,450,374
equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of 208,356,207 143,045,205 351,401,412
the period

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the 262,082,811 113,768,975 375,851,786
period
For the Year Ended 16 July 2018

Particulars Previous GAAP NPR | Effect of transition | Amount as per
to NFRS NPR NFRS NPR

Net Cash Flows from operating activities 57,612,292 49,729,433 107,341,727
Net Cash Flows from investing activities (38,349,949) (197,161,357) (235,511,306)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities (5,395,875) - (5,395,875)
Net increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash 13,866,468 (147,431,924) (133,565,454)
equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of 194,489,739 40,166,577 234,656,316
the period

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the 208,356,207 (107,265,347) 101,090,860
period

Notes on Cash Flow Statement

There is no any cash inflow due to NFRS. However, major adjustments are observed mainly due to reclassification
of call deposits from investment in Local GAAP to cash and cash equivalent in NFRS financials. Also, Interest
Income and other realized gain on disposal of assets is Classified as operating Income in case of NFRS causing the
difference in classification.
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Notes to First Time Adoption of NFRS:

a)

b)

c)

f)

g)

Deffered tax assets and Liabilities are created on all the adjustments made for converging the financials
into NFRS Compliant financial statement.

Accrued Interest on investment measured at amortized cost are capitalized with the respective investment
against the previous practice of disclosing it separately as interets receivable.

FVTOCI are valued at the fair value (Mark to Market) as on Ashadh End and the unrealized gain is also
routed through OCI

Under Previous GAAP, agent commission expenses and Reinsurance commission expense were accounted
on cash basis. Under NFRS, these expenses are reported on accrual basis in proportion to the policy
period using 1/365th Method

Under previous GAAP, reinsurance assets related to Unexpired Risk reserve and Outstanding Claims were
presented on Net Basis by setting off against respective assets. Under NFRS, these assets are presented
in Gross Basis.

Call deposit are classified as cash and cash equivalents for NFRS purpose, previously it was disclosed as
bank balance

Insurance Contract Liabilities under previous GAAP were presented on Net basis. Under NFRS it is
presented in Gross basis by separately disclosing Provisions for Outstanding Claims, IBNR and Unexpired
Risk Reserve

Acturial Valuation of Employee Benefits (Leave Encashment and Gratuity) has been done under NFRS.
Previously, it was calculated as per the methods prescribed in its' employee byelaws. Employee Bonus
has been calculated at 10% of profit before tax derived as per Special Purpose financial statement

Under Previous GAAP, Reinsurance Commission Income was accounted on cash basis. Under NFRS,
reinsurance income are reported on accrual basis in proportion to the policy period using 1/365th
Method

Under previous GAAP, bonus share and cash dividend were charged to retained earning for the year
which it has been declared. Under NFRS, provision for cash dividend and Bonus Shares has been reversed
and disclosed in notes only and charged in the year on which it has been passed by AGM. Also, previously
provision for income tax was disclosed separately whereas for NFRS purpose it has been set off against
advance income tax.
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GAQEGI J5eAA Thodail (ANCS

3ToRTaT 2y

fadir fdaroreio1 Jdafoera Uoara aan olifdsx

FIHR i af=am

TAUAS SrRIT HFaHT fAtHdg (NLG Insurance Company Limited) (Faafeg "avai" wfquer) Turerr wftyq e afca
queht ffstae T saaam T FEE AT | agET WES P TN, ATEe, FIEHVSTHT TEHl G | BEIAl AqTel
ferdror= feareioe e fefe AT gefiega Wuar T T UF 0%< T AT [Hammaell 0% &1 Afaar @1 = afufdere =i
gred T fafsteas ST e g= e T AU g o

geqa i faaeure® wvadie dares atafad ffa 309 /03/39 T qifed Ter B

q.

fasfir famoT aard=T naTeER

o afafaer fafa 00w /0% /99 @1 MEe FuEINH T8 FFOHT A9, 309Y /08y @ SHT FIHA AT TLHT
fotia ST SEE™ T SHGH G faaeor el e aHifsT® Nepal Standards on Auditing 800 Special

considerations — Audits of Financial Statements prepared in Accordance with Special purpose frameworks

AT G @I Fied AT AHTTHT T T TASITH AN I&qT fawi foawer qam TReH g |

T TTES Uhlgrard HEATEIT AT LT ATel facii fdae=w= (Nepal Financial Reporting Standard -NFRS) 3179
3093/ 00% TG FFIUT SHT FFIAEEATs AT TIA] AL HUHMAT TG AT, J009% /0 AT TUT fa<(id TiqaadT
(NFRS) amanfed gz faeiar foaeor qam afer g |

FFIA O faavuee Ufdetae Hedd ddmen (Historical Cost Convention) &Y ¥ TTHT A=Al Ioold
TRUHHAT qed GRAEl (Accrual) STITRAT @I T AHIAT: A S@IH [METedes, FAaq S AraTar
T T U9 R0¥R, dT MawTEe 0¥ Tur SAT qiAtaer faxe faawer vl e st ST e
TEH! TIAT THAATS LATTHT W7 qaTR U ) |

fa<iiar faavure® o= 9T&T ATITR WU JET Hifde® do Jeoid TUHT G | AT Jooi@ TRUSMT ATk A Afaaearr
T e ®|T Tie F |

HTATART ATEMT:

fair faauee A AT @rE MgTedetdl ATAT TE AaeITaad FF q91 Al ATA T 96y o9
HTAR faxiia faa<orT Jeorg TRUHT a¥ITd, 3TMcd, A T97 @=a et adT ATEaTd [Hide! aihdg GHad aTdcaars
IAF TEE | ATEda® TR0 (Actual Result) Sedifad AT WwaT e g9 daeg | A@ieT ATHIAT A B
i eadvedTg =T st ard afgen dafr Ea an AN g o

fax awfa smarem |ifa
R Ffdes UfdeTiaed Hed AaduTTe! ATaTRAT J@rgd T4 dNd Hed| T a1q HE T4 @rsuH g |

feor grfaee @fe T dfgedt AfeAT IRg 2T ®E T Aiq TR g | FFHIe] Y qIuaeRd SaaRTIe
Effective Usefule life T STaTaHT faTor T (7 arITHeT 219 2l 3Lkl ATITIHT Tl Hed JUITel (Diminishing
Balance Method) @l TETRHET J@TET 9 A AaATST TUH G |

" feax aeatast faagor 9 FET a feraasn
q ®iT=R qar e Y
R FATT AHE Rt
3 FFAT TAT AT Tt ITHT Y
¥ gy "
(%) foeew THEaaR 0
£ eI L] R0
% [T Eleg Tt Y
I gt L

AET TR afeaEd, 00 /9y |1 Y05



GAQEGI J5eAA Thodail (ANCS

FEIAIS ATRAT (IR TFafdees aqad 9 T (Impairment Test), STaET S5 T S14H A9 ATAM T
ATER TS T A9 SETAT AT qeafde® dlel oAfde a9l dqa@d T Afq faus g |

tofam AP awfige et SraTaA A -

FEOAET @i T T AT T aeare G e eraTge AR ROE g |

HTAHT qAT T FY Faedl Hifd (Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax) :

FFIAIS ATHT TT 045 T ATFL MIATEe] 04 AR ATHTH T T A fTuasr g |

A &Y -

U A@THTT & FATHY GEAT TIT STAcae! ATITRHT WA TRUH FLH d@Tgdhd TUH g | fade @@ sqar
FEIT qAT AGcAH THH qTIT FT AR (09 Floh 98 ol g Je4Ts +a< (Temporary Difference) &I U
AT HT AT 8 F ATRcT AT TFI(Al AT e 9T WA HLpl A@TgA TTH G | A9 @A qeT ST
gtafaer ffdse T st faxi faa=omT @ T gvafq qa1 aicadrs a9EeE (Netted Off) TR ETET s ER
STHATTHT &R AHT TR q9T aRed Aeaid a@idbd T AT [I2Ua @ | @R & geeedl JUeh a@idd
PRATEHATIRT PR FFAR FoIA1 ATAT &l THH AR ATFT A(SHIS [GHTEHT @ @l BT F JAST HIT @I THH
T T HITH] THH WA F a8k AT FATTH AT FIRT T AT @l g |

T [@TEA A (Investment Policy) :

LR FAAUA / FUTIHAT T q@re A

S afufqer fada faan gwavdt e sAfw el s=qua a1 RO a7 A9 Gl STHAd YIed
HITHT TNCH TS A5d T (Face Value) a1 TR Ao Hed SH U § Hiel HAAT q@IHA T A (g0
3

GUg (1) T Joo@ TRU FHITH TRUHN AMHH AT5dT qe (Face Value) a1 TR Hed aE1 AUHT T TE1 THAATS
AT & STl ATITCHT AT ARl erat i FHTaIfae ST (Pro-rata Basis) ST&WT SHIANA T Hifq
Rl 3 |

GUg (9) AT Seord T FHINH TN TR A5 HeA (Face Value) T=T IR Hed HH AUHT T X THAATS
T AT [ AT ATATIHT (Pro-rata Basis) @NHIATE A& €T @IgA T AT [T5TH g |

gug () AT Jooi@ TN THINHS T=d T a1 HITAH d@Ig TUH qed Aol g Hed HH g1 TTAT T Fidh
THH TS AT (Provision) T i feguest & |

S o faelir weamr qeet e @ S if

a7 atafaer facie faawor arawed faferer awifaw S qur faxia @ qedt (e ar AR @ S ar
FIAATEEHT TTRT AMHIATS AMET THTAT SETEUH ) |

gfsas fafade Fvoie S s e Hifd

afede fAfHdS HFAIH grased SATHT TRUH AMHIATE IXd JodHT q@rgd T Aiq [deuel g | ST T
TR A@TFH TR AT TET A qed HH 8 TUHT & Bl THH TqET AT (Provision) T i fagua
sl

afectar fAfHee FFIAIH Jearqed TATHT AR MU I JHAAT HIAA STHIGH (A= STSTHT G THIAT Ih

afear fAfiee FFIiiel FUER T Soeq 99 q0H fafder @ a9 a7 0 &l aiers 93 qoawl s@rg T i
Y afeg T AAHATS T AT I@T5 §1 AT JqaCH FaT (Provision) T AfT faguer g |

it fafde FFaAIRl Glerdd SATAT A TRUH AT TH(d BT TAIGA [GaraT ao=el qfeaare gq &0
T FETHT FF=AT (Provision) T Hifa ferguer g |

gfes fafede Froia A TR HUTIHERAT AT A@Te i

et fAfeE FFIAI A TN HOTTAEEHT THUH ANMIATs dAT5d qed (Face Value) aT IR T el I 9 g
HIE! qedHT d@rgd T4 Aid [deuar g | Afd qed 91 T Ged a¢] A AT TEl (HAATS AT g Aadial

gt aTfeiR aferaEs, oWy /9y 11 90R



GAQEGI J5eAA Thodail (ANCS

0.

1.

R.

®.

9¥%.

HTITCAT AT AAIHT AT [ TS ATATHT (Pro-rata Basis) ATHT THIAN T A1 (U G T ATgd oo
TaT IR Hod ¥ WUAT T FXd (HAATs al atd (93 quIaide A (Pro-rata Basis) SRTHIETE ST
RIHT @I T AT AU g | d@rgd Tl Aeaqwl a9 9ed FH JUAT Bld THA auay a8 (Provision)
T i ferguer 3

AT TR T fAHESHT TRET T T A

AT AATHT HFIAT [ATHESHT T THIATE TR Hed T @ T A (gl g |

TEE TTag U Al :

fazeft qaT WU FREAReEH d@rzT Gl fafqar I« afw aor afwsr g 1 Al g @ gwafa T afaeas
e H HISETAHT HeaTgd AUl o @ 3¢ AR T qAT JaTE IoTe Flbells ATRI AT faTaaT oRargT
T Hifq faguer g

FATEEd AT JETsA A

ST AT fir T T frar Atafaer (e sifss qe qiftde ArarEr srge TRua g 1 98 T g
fafq w1 AT oo R T 99 (AT 9y TUHET igeal (HITHT ST ed AR o@Tgd T T SHTeed 0F
a§ W= qE FATHN AR THAS ITq FOAT Gfedd] q9H AT B 13 fHTees AT d@rgs T afel Wbl
THH gL &A1 Q@I AT (Tl 3 |

TH FFAI (AT SHR T AT IT & AHTed AT TE9El (Accrual) STAT d@ied TRUH § |
TAETHT HHIA AT @3 Hf

AT HAT AT GRAET (Accrual) STUTRHT F@rgd THRUH 3 |

A AT A@TSA qAT qrGHIG Af -

FEIA AT ITq T AT qIT 7T ATRTHATS TR (Accrual) STETTHT T9T SATATT AFRTH FHFIA et
T AT FSAT WU (Right to receive) #TITEHT w@rgd T4 &y dfhfqe faxfia faawr qeaed et
I & ATRRTAATS 16T A6 [66rd 47 7 27 feqrasdl 9 dTER aighie TR g |

AT A@TgA A

AGIHT TNUHN G | AT HAl AqA g GATq AT AACHT Sl Al Jqax T AGe4T (Provision) T Hifd
ferguar g |

FAEAIA G arghig A :

AT Ftafaer ot Fawr gwaedl el aHive & Faead @9l (0% THH ATR A9 feqed T aw
TGS Al THAATS FFarvad ST TS TIe SR ATHHAT HAT HEE 5 ATS (HHATS ad ST
ZEAIE] A AT Fa S0 gl A A G aighie T4 Aiq ey TRaH g |

T T AT @ @S A

FHEAIC I TS bHl SHT Tl P ARG AT &I SHE THIH Rl TS ar&iad HH qdr g1 el
FFAEH! AT ATTIE TR TAT AT @ FHTA T AT [AGURT G | T I Fgdiear! AT Jarierhrd ar
FHATAA TLHT BTHE! TLEHE T A7 T AT9qH] ThH THTIIT T AIq [ TTel g |

T Tt v Tfiea Eedn dErg Jifd
HFAT AR qY AFHTL AT AATCHT (IBNR) ST & amaad TTed Saaedn dJ@rsa Tai Jaerad T A1

ST UGN T FTHAT FATTHN (IBNR) FHT a1l a19q qfcd SAawl aeradenl A9 ATl J@rgd I
Hifq feguar g |

g arfiw gfadEq, R0y /9y 11 %0
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@)

WM.

%

q9.

9z.

R.

fT Tl e arfiea saeear d@rsA Aif

A TPl e qEH ThIA T il AWT QT ATIq aT1aca Fael FHT UT 0%, & TRT IR TIT ST Hawaa
R0%%, T fAFH QU (Q)(F) T FFer FuirH T aMcaer 9% JTerde g TH TaeT TRuH F |

gg AR Sighig Hif

fET TF R0%¥Q H TET R, EHEEAT 0¥ @ e qua) qur fmr atafaer o e el Rt
AT FTHINH =[hT Yol TEY TAUHEH @3 ATHRIE KO T g (H AT HITH JIRUHT G, THATAR AR -
AT [EHTEAT ATCHT @R AR L0 FATT THAATS TAH [BTHB! SHTHTHT [diEea 9 AT dIShiS TTH
g | WY A GUHT ST IS GHAT Wbl AT A A AT TTHT S0 AGERAT A AR TSI TR
3

Frar afafaer o fFaw araedl Mefres @Eer aui e SHr aamEed 0% &1 | @ (1) Fuie @
ATRTR T GiTeTd THH TG AT, 0%3/%¥ TFEAHT @S TNTH! JeT qa7 9™ 0.3 FHifwy @1 wiues
TETTS ST TS WG A Ul g | g9 fTwAT TASTRT THH ATieT (aaor AT AT IUANT T
Gull

FHA UM, faar qan s qfqan ama = i
U< (Gratuity)

GEAI @H Al 1 GUEE EH ANIE AT BT AId @igd SIS AT @1 T T &l AMEre. 3o
TS THT FFIAIA IJUI AT TS I THHAT THEN T A fTuar g |

=T W (Provident Fund) :

FFOAIHN Gz FGoT P ANEAH] AT WH G T9 AT FHATIHN AT TG 0 IqeTd SAaead g=ar @=
T el TUTH] (T FHATIR] qATATE BRI R0 FAT TUELH (W FHITI T BT ATd HHTTRT
GITHT STFAT T At fagesr & |

faar amaawt A gfaem (Leave Encashment) :

FHEAAIHT FHATY IHATEA! AR @Rl FHarieed! My=d o3 q91 fauH foar qfs=aq 9eqe aigars |1 9= a6l
gfs=aa g qun fawet fa=r (Accumulated Earned Leave & Sick Leave) :

~

AT Wl BH=TOREd Ais=d oY q97 [ foer arade! ThHATS grairad HH=aTe! e aual afvdd e

HATITHT Fis=a oL qar (Ot foar @=er e T Iy @=uT @4 ded Jiid U g |
SfieM &M@ (Life Insurance Policy) :

FHTer fafd 090 /0% /09 T AfHelE T Wl FHATUERE! BHAT AT[Ad TURT AT-qH AT qeAeel I (L)
Y FIEE dHiE qar fAfd 2090 /0% /09 T Ihg FAT HAT g WA FHEATIERH] EHAT TeNT THAT [awTg WA
FIH T ratged st FHerE Y& T aTId aRT Siad SHreed EH AT @9HT @9 A Jid AU g |
F Wl FHATN 397 a9 FraT FFol SISHT Ih Sfied SiWeig aTqde! Ul g ThH TAUES FH=T el
HITHT AT T AT fTwerT g |

THTETE AT TTEAT A

STHTEIE SATATHIHT TN aRaTaAe aiur T AT ATITHT a7 (Provision) T+ Hifd fawar g |
HIAEH @ A@TA A :

AIAGT T T Goet AT R0 T ATa TEMT 4 T9 GFa] FRAEIET qoer@d T Hihq [ g |
s Hfifoew -

SATHATT, AR AFE [FEE, AT 2T (" aHaw A FERuers agq T e T 96e T 0 d
%55

g aTfiw afedEq, Rowy /9y 11 999
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(F) HATHT HHIE FFHT q@T3A At (Profit Commission Income Policy) :

HATRT HATL AR ST AHAfael Mo FHINE T& Jitdad! ATaAT a1 HATRl HTL GFavadl qaameaedre
fafgd THLT YT AUPl ATRITHT @IS T AT (AT G |

(@) JATHTE ARG ST A@TSA A :

FFIAIT ST UF R0%Q qoT AT MIHTEE 0¥ FHINW JEATT JREH SISl arqd @3 Ml ekl L0 Fraed
THH FART T T [AUDT & | I TaAT Tl (HUATS Uigeal] AT audT AT TATS AT (AUl & | X,
s AR THAT TAAT T THAATS A a9 TGl ATTH® aUHT ATFRTA] STATS A [TTH G |

m fama adET @Rt smaEk

i afwfaer fafier faawor avadl MEfre ey favra avET avatrad dee @, woll 91 degere A A
ATIHI-3 T @IS AT FATAFeT TRIH G |

=) T avEn aEfad ge=gs

i afafaer faxie faawor vt MEfre oea A avie grfad @=ege AR J@E aiewhie eqEd @9
S@IIA A TATEIT TTH ) |

(8) et afifew<ut #ifq (Classification of Investment Policy) :

TIET T T 2] ATEHT ATHIATS AcTHIA ARl RIAT S@TI A [ Tahl g |

a1 arftfer gfadEq, 09% /9y 11 IR



GAGAGI SeZANTA thodall [Ales
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fadiar fdaroRdor Jodfoera oiar Adodeosl fwofiss

9. gEATfEd qTiieaER ¢
&) T[T AT S[THIAT G SATebl ATHI-THTHT |
) Wﬂﬁf gfdagar (Underwriting Commitments) - THTaT |
3) @ Avaiq Aal ATEHATE d1Heb IUT &l TLehl qX ATHebel QI1Ica THIBIT A Lehl- THTH |
g) dHE a1 A HFHH THATE [GSTH AT - TACET |
3) A A - T HEOA TLH AT 37T o IU Foy TGt Fel Sifadete SMm arard
TAT TARTEE ARTATHT HET G TCHT T ITh 74T a19q g7 ol aTioed & =%,9%,%¥39 /- o8
eIt aTiea RITHAT 3@T8 Ith (W aER ARl AT el THd U & |
. VRRMT T ST I ST qTied HeATEA e Aaee TRET HATERER
FEAI TAIFATETE SAHHR g7 ATUH! ATANA TH TdT JT6 GeATgARal (FHIX) F SIded TAUH! ATHTT Tl
THH UE EITAH dWiE THHP! ATITCAT T HeATga T4 |1 ATHIAT TcawT FFaeiel Ferehl 994 gfqeraer g
TS THA AT T il JTel] AT9q el TRUH G | |

3 dEw gwfaAr s Hifar aan faaeeR - T9eaE |
¥. e, AT qar g geafasr anfit afves gfdagar - T9e |
Y. T grafead g @fie fasRt aERidEeRT 7
o) gitg TRUHT qrafae! @iiica Yo THUHN - T9TH |
) forsht TRl qeafdal Aehrl ITed THUH - THIEH |
% g9 quWd TiegE s qan fant ) et foger s avaeemn wean, fafa, afwmor 1w a@a gee e

AMHT a0 | AT & A TP A | @ fwar ga
(®.) TPH (R.)
F 1 AT qIHR T AU T Febebl HUMA qT_ F=d I - -
g = q) afre et et e 35,00,00,000 95,30,00,000
R) fa@m @ qeat (e 90,94,00,000 ¥ 50,00,000
3) AT ST BITHT Teblahl AT AL - -
¥) WHIES® A BT (= FHUS) eHT A R.3%,99,¥ 90 33%,35,4%0
T A q) ufeete feafwds FFdar HoTaTT 4,00,00,000 -
R) ufects fafade wraigses! Qremeor ST A9 R¥,3%,50 EE, X0
3) forr woiarr el e 4,50,00,000 3,50,00,000
STHT %%, 9%, 9%,R9%0 30,90, 40,590

W, % Hiee frae arargr arafead @/ fadia dearnt @i afgawt feae fremm gt sagi

T qur faciia GRaTERHT Wl S Hivald HvuATel [Eare & fHer™ (Reconcile) TRU#T, faxia geareeare Hivard
qUAT 97 YT b g |

c.  dww/ A @ fo fom ot fam avaram awafraa Sma ) meimear aadn afme fae fem awerd @@

A/ (A AE 1 faq o ol feama avaegwr &ie dWaE/ qqame are g 98 feard e (Reconcile) TR
PRl G T A-TH SHHT [ea1d (T (Reconcile) T THATHT TEHl g |

Q. HHEHA TR AW q=fed S A, Fawmmast qan fimn afafaee ditwesr see @ 2@
FFITET TLB] AT ST FIH{TehT AT qraedl fAaeTTer difepusel afet i weel o |

gt arffr gfedes, o0y /9y 11 993
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fTHFHT TATR AT AATARET TIAFElT Afh AT AEATHT HTHT FILEAT :

T BT[] GETAS a7 GATAd G e GIes e THIT el 3 |

oooo

off T ATSH IR HFIH

o c

1 fafiee, anfsrare, @roamoet |
.

AT Jool@ AU FEITET T AT AT TG Tee®
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